
 
 

                     MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
                                CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
                                    6801 Delmar Blvd. 
                         University City, Missouri 63130 
                                      September 24, 2015 
                                            6:30 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER  
 
B. ROLL CALL  
 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
D. PROCLAMATIONS 

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

1. September 8, 2015, Study Session 
2. September 8, 2015 Regular Session 

 
F. APPOINTMENTS  

1. Jaclyn Kirouac-Fram nominated for appointment to the Human Relations’ Commission by 
Mayor Welsch. 

2. Caryn St. Clair nominated for appointment to the Human Relations’ Commission by 
Councilmember Carr. 
 

G. SWEARING IN  
1. Rubina Steward-McCadney was sworn into the Library Board in the City Clerk’s office, 

replacing Susan Glassman. 
 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. University City’s 2015 property tax assessment 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
1. Approval to grant authority to the City Manager to sign contract with Professional Irrigation 

Systems, to complete the Millar Park Field Renovation and Irrigation Project in the amount 
of $85,471.00.  The Municipal Park Grant Commission share will be $72,650.35 and the 
City share will be $12,820.65. 
VOTE REQUIRED 
 

2. Approval to award Ackert Plaza Renovation Project to RV Wagner, Inc. in the amount of 
$141,512.00 with Great Rivers Greenway share will be $25,000.00 and the Economic 
Development Retail Sales Tax share will be $116,512.00. 
VOTE REQUIRED 
 
 
 
 



 
 

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
BILLS 
1. BILL 9271 – An ordinance to enable the City of University City, Missouri to join Show Me 

Pace and to join Missouri Clean Energy District, pursuant to Section 67.2800 to 67.2835, 
RSMO, the “Property Assessed Clean Energy Act,” and stating the terms under which 
the City will conduct activities as a member of such districts. 
 

2. BILL 9272 – An ordinance amending chapter 610, Article I, Canvassers, Solicitors and 
Peddlers, of the City of University City Municipal Code, to add new sections governing 
Street Performers as provided herein. 
 

3. BILL 9273 – An ordinance amending certain provisions of the University City Municipal 
Code to comply with Missouri Senate Bill No. 5 (SB5) relating to penalties, court 
procedures, and speeding violations. 

 
4. BILL 9274 – An ordinance amending Chapter 140 of the University City Municipal Code, 

relating to miscellaneous administrative provisions, by enacting therein a new section to 
be known as “Section 140.025 Ambulance Transportation Service Contracts.” 

Bill requested by Councilmembers Crow and Carr. 
 

M. NEW BUSINESS 
RESOLUTIONS 
1. Resolution 2015 – 21    Resolution approving 2015 annual property tax assessment 

rates. 
 

BILLS 
2. BILL 9269 – An ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract between 

the City Of University City and the Missouri Highway and Transportation Commission 
providing for the improvements on various streets in University City. 
 

N. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 
 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

Requested by Councilmember Carr and Crow 
• Gateway ambulance 15 minute delay on September 15, 2015 

DISCUSSION & VOTE 
• Mold in Police Station 

DISCUSSION & VOTE 
• Police staffing 

DISCUSSION 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 



UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 

5th Floor of City Hall 
6801 Delmar Blvd 

September 8, 2015 
5:30 p.m.  

 
The City Council Study Session was held in the Council Chamber, 5th floor of City Hall, on 
Monday, September 8, 2015.  Mayor Shelley Welsch called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
In addition to the Mayor the following members of the Council were present: 
 

 Councilmember Paulette Carr arrived at 5:35 p.m. 
 Councilmember Arthur Sharpe, Jr. 
 Councilmember Rod Jennings arrived at 5:45 p.m. 
 Councilmember Terry Crow 
 Councilmember Stephen Kraft    

 
Councilmember Glickert was excused. 
 
Also in attendance were the Community Development Director Andrea Riganti, Police Chief 
Charles Adams, Police Captain Carol Jackson, Dan Redstone from Redstone and Associates 
and Chris Chiodini and Lou Chiodini from Chiodini Architects. 
   
Mayor Welsch called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  She asked if there were any changes 
to the upcoming meeting’s agenda. 
 
City Manager Lehman Walker stated he would like to remove Bill 9269  under Unfinished 
Business.. 
 
Mayor Welsch turned the meeting over to City Manager Lehman Walker who said the study 
session was to discuss background information on University City Police Department Facility 
Analysis prepared by Chiodini Architects. 
 
Community Development Director Andrea Riganti introduced participants, Chief Adams, 
Captain Jackson, Dan Redstone from Redstone and Associates and Chris Chiodini and Lou 
Chiodini from Chiodini Architects who performed the University City Police Department facility 
analysis.  Ms. Riganti provided a brief background: 

• City Hall was constructed in 1903 for the purpose as a printing facility and not as a 
police facility.   

• Converted for police and fire in 1938 
• Fire department was relocated in 2013 due to the conditions of the facility 

Ms. Riganti turned it over to Captain Jackson who gave an overview of the police department 
and its operation. 
 
Captain Jackson noted: 

• University City is one of the largest police departments in St. Louis County. 
• Police department has three bureaus - Investigations, Field Operations and Services 
• The department receives over 2300 - 911 calls per month 
• The department receives over 56,000 calls for year for service 

1 

 
September 24, 2015 E-1-1



• The department processed over 2300 prisoners in a one year time frame 
• Facilities have been maintained on a piecemeal basis, working on plumbing and 

electrical when needed to keep it working 
• Police department has been recognized  for being, Proficient Efficient and Professional 

to the point of being recommended to take over policing in other municipalities 
• Safety issues are a  concern to the department 
• It is of concern to present officers and for recruitment of new officers to see other 

municipalities with new and updated facilities. 
 
Ms. Riganti noted that the City has been aware of the facility’s problems since 1980 when a 
study was performed revealing several of the environmental and facility issues that are still 
prevalent today.  A bond issue was presented to the City for upgrades to the facility and it 
failed. Since that time funds have been made available to band-aid problems but the City 
cannot continue to do that. 
 
Daniel Redstone noted the study was to determine what it is for that the department needs to 
operate an efficient facility.  He noted that safety is paramount in the design of a new facility.   
Noted safety issues were: 

• Lack of secure separation between  staff and public 
• Lack of separation of prisoner processing and police operations 
• Inefficient, unsafe, unsecure work flow and departmental adjacencies 
• Unhealthy and unsafe work environment – mold, mildew, water infiltration and 

structural deficiencies 
• Lack of secure prisoner transport to cells 
• Lack of ADA compliance 
• Cells that do not comply with current standards 
• Evidence processing area that is not contiguous and is inefficient 
• Evidence storage that is not contiguous, lacks  proper security and ventilation and 

provides inadequate space 
• Municipal court location – concern about the security of documents when moving to 

court location 
The basic needs assessment was done after interviews, meetings and questionnaires in order 
to define what University City’s Police Department needed going forward.  He noted that a 
new building or a renovation of the present building would be a decision for the City Council to 
decide.   
 
It was noted that the accreditation of the police department is dependent on the condition of 
the department’s building, which is addressed in Senate Bill (SB5).  In order to meet the 
certification criteria there are certain areas that require brick and mortar to complement the 
procedure.   
 
The physical/environmental conditions of the police department are: 

• Antiquated systems – efficiency, parts, dirt and mold 
• Absence of fire protection system 
• Continual water infiltration 
• Continual microbial/mold issues 
• Continual structural deterioration 
• Asbestos/lead containing materials 
• Continual pest infiltration 

2 

 
September 24, 2015 E-1-2



Not in compliance with: 
• Building code 
• Essential services/Seismic Code compliance 
• ADA accessibility compliance 
• Energy standards compliance 
• State/National police facility operational guidelines 

 
The basic operational needs of the department are: 

• Safety and security:  site and facility 
• Separation of traffic flow: police/public/prisoner 
• Consolidated evidence processing and storage 
• Consolidated prisoner processing and holding 
• Work flow efficiencies and adjacencies 
• Co-location of Municipal Court 

 
Chiodini Architects passed out questionnaires specific to this project, followed by 
departmental groupings and interviews for the space needs analysis.  From this the architects 
came up with the square footage needed for an efficient functional operation.  The estimate 
for the annex renovation in 2016 cost is $25,238,648.00, plus a separate cost to temporarily 
house the police department and records.  The estimate for construction of a new police 
department facility is $12,463,387.00, plus land cost. 
 
Ms. Riganti noted the City has known of the existing operational and facilities issues for thirty-
six years with the existing annex.  She noted that they expected some refinements to both the 
cost and space analysis.  Two options were presented for the City and Council to discuss the 
next steps.  The City has set aside seven million dollars in reserves in anticipation of the need 
for a new or upgraded facility.  The question is where the City will find the additional funds 
needed.  The proposal is to hold several informational meetings about the options to seek 
feedback from the residents as to their preferred option and what the funding mechanism 
would be.  If the preferred option would be a new facility, the next question would be what 
should be done with the annex, an historical structure.  In October, a survey will be distributed 
door-to-door to the public with results brought back to Council at the end of October or 
beginning of November.   
 
Questions: 

• Need of space for bulk evidence storage.  Needed due to size and volatility of some 
objects. 

• Are there better and best versions provided in analysis.  There were no wishes 
presented.   

• Time frame for construction or rehabilitation of annex.  Three years for a new building 
and renovation would be in excess of that with move in and move out. 

• Cost to move department and dispatch out and back in.  The big cost would come from 
moving the dispatch but the consultants had no estimate of cost. 

• Cells made with glass surrounding instead of bars.  Tempered glass has been used for 
the past fifteen years instead of bars, making it easier to view any events within cell. 

• Can the Police Department be in more than one facility?  Transportation of prisoners 
and records between buildings is not good for security reasons.   

3 

 
September 24, 2015 E-1-3



• How many prisoners the department had last year and asked if they were just from U 
City arrests.  The arrests were just for U City.  Does the City charge the prisoners in 
custody?  The prisoners are not charged for their incarceration.   

• When asked to take over several other municipalities was this turned down and by 
whom?  It was not turned down.  The consolidation was a recommendation not a 
formal request. 

• Have there been any prisoner escapes?  Only two remembered, in  
Chief Adams’ long tenure with the department.  Chief noted that the building does not 
suit what the police need to do every day.  We still have police officer’s and staff 
working in this building.  He noted we still have to arrest people, we still have to serve 
and protect and we still have to dispatch EMS, fire and police.  Chief stated that this 
study has been going on for a year now. It will be another year to decide what will be 
done and another two or three years construct or reconstruct a new police station.  We 
will still be in the building.  We have shut down the third floor because of the wetness, 
mildew and mold.  We cannot use the basement when it rains because of water 
seepage.  We do not use the fire department because it has already been deemed not 
suitable for use.  We need a facility to promote good health and a more efficient facility 
for the department’s employees.  We have a lot of people in that building that work for 
you. 

• What is the possibility of obtaining outside funds as through grants?  Seeking federal, 
state or local fund grants has been explored but nothing was available.  

• Will University City be in the court business in the future with all changes being 
suggested?  A phased-in design was suggested, with the space needed for court 
added later if needed.  This could cut the cost at the beginning.  Most likely the change 
in the court system will be in streamlining process and procedure to be consistent and 
function the same with all cities.   

• How long will the estimated price exist.  Costs rise approximately five percent a year so 
by time construction could start it could be five to ten percent higher. 

• Chief was asked if he would prefer one approach over the other.  Chief Adams noted 
that there would be a lot more to consider if the existing building is renovated, and the 
cost is double that of a new building.  He stated that we have lost police officers and 
recruits to cities with better facilities. 

• Does a new construction contain a shooting range?  Yes but smaller. 
 
Mr. Walker stated that after the public events and survey tabulations the City would be 
coming back to Council with recommendations.   
 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 5:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Joyce Pumm, City Clerk, MRCC/CMC 

4 

 
September 24, 2015 E-1-4



 
 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

6801 Delmar Blvd. 
University City, Missouri 63130 

September 8, 2015 
6:30 p.m. 

 
A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER  

At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on the fifth floor of City Hall, 
on Tuesday, September 8, 2015, Mayor Shelley Welsch called the meeting to order at 6:30 
p.m. 

 
B. ROLL CALL  

  In addition to the Mayor the following members of Council were present: 
 
     Councilmember Rod Jennings 
     Councilmember Paulette Carr  
     Councilmember Stephen Kraft   
     Councilmember Terry Crow 
     Councilmember Arthur Sharpe, Jr. 

Councilmember Glickert was excused. 
 
 Also in attendance was City Manager, Lehman Walker. 

 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mr. Walker requested that Bill Number 9269 under Unfinished Business be removed from the 
agenda. 
 
Voice vote to approve the agenda as amended carried unanimously.   

 
D. PROCLAMATIONS 

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

1. August 3, 2015, Regular Session Minutes were moved by Councilmember Sharpe and 
were seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 

 
Councilmember Crow requested the minutes be amended to include the following comment 
made by Councilmember Kraft; "The woman who got up and spoke was convicted of 
assaulting my wife.  The case is being appealed."   Seconded by Councilmember Carr. 
 
Councilmember Carr requested that the minutes be amended to include the following 
statements:  

Item 4 under the City Manager's Report. 
(a).  "Mayor Welsch stated that there are a number of requests to speak for the next item, 
therefore she wished to proceed with Council speaking first, the public next, and then 
back to Council.  She reminded members of Council that their remarks should be limited 
to 10 minutes, which includes all questions." 
(b).  "Councilmember Carr asked whether the emails she had received from residents 
asking that she read them on their behalf be added to the list of speakers?  Mayor Welsch 
stated that since there are so many residents in attendance who have requested to speak, 
it would be appropriate to note the author, their position, and then place them in the 

1 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-1



record.  Councilmember Carr asked if someone from the audience could read the emails.  
Mayor Welsch stated that they could." 

 
Other Discussions/Business: 
(a).  "Councilmember Carr further stated that she did not feel the Mayor should put the 
responsibility for not following up on the clarification of her misrepresentation of the City 
Attorney's." 
b).  Councilmember Carr stated that she knew she was going to be bullied, and that this 
was going to be a raw deal for her constituents.  She concluded by saying that she was 
going to save Rule Number 24 for another day, but this misrepresentation of the opinion 
of the opinion of the City Attorney on Rule 24 was unconscionable." 

 
Voice vote on both motions to amend carried unanimously. 

 
F. APPOINTMENTS  

1. Rubina Stewart-McCadney was nominated for appointment to the Library Board by 
Councilmember Jennings, was seconded by Councilmember Sharpe and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

2. Julianne Niemann, Matthew Fillo, Steven McMahon and Edward McCarthy and Frank 
Reedy were nominated for reappointments to the Retirement Commissions by 
Councilmember Crow, were seconded by Councilmember Carr and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

3. Michael Waxenberg was nominated for appointment to be Chair for the Civil Service 
Commission by Councilmember Glickert and was seconded by Councilmember Kraft. 

 
Councilmember Carr questioned whether a specific process is used to determine which 
member of Council can make a nomination for the Chair of the Civil Service Board?  Mayor 
Welsch stated that any Councilmember can make the nomination.  However in this case 
Councilmember Glickert decided to make the nomination since he is the Council Liaison to the 
Civil Service Board. 
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Glickert's nomination of Michael Waxenberg to be Chair of the 
Civil Service Board carried unanimously. 
 

G. SWEARING IN  
1. Bob Wilcox was sworn in to the CALOP commission. 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Elsie Glickert, 6712 Etzel, University City, MO 
Ms. Glickert stated that, a review of the U City Fire Department and their union, is in order.  
She stated that prior to the union's arrival, the department was a group of community-minded 
men who were well respected by citizens.  However a different set of dynamics occurred after 
the union entered the picture in 1977.  Ms. Glickert provided a brief overview of the union's 
attempts to influence this City's administration and challenged the media to conduct an audit 
of the Firefighters’ Union to determine how their monthly contributions are being spent. 
 
Jeff Hales, 7471 Kingsbury, University City, MO 
Mr. Hales stated citizens raised significant concerns and asked to delay consideration on the 
recommendation to enter into a contract with Gateway until those questions and concerns 
could be resolved.  In lack of a response citizens have called town hall meetings to discuss 
their concerns. 
     Mr. Hales read a quote from the Mayor's 2010 campaign materials into the record:  "I 
promise to you that as Mayor I will tackle these tough issues head-on and will solicit your input 
in the process.  I intend to fight for you and for an administration that is focused on truth, 

2 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-2



transparency and inclusion.  No more surprises that affect you, your family and pocketbook.  
We will have open discussions about the issues we face as a community, and how to best 
address them in a way that reflects your concerns and priorities. "  Volunteers of U City United  
are seeking the support of everyone to sign the petition to recall Mayor Shelly Welsch.   
 
Bart Stewart, 714 Harvard Avenue, University City, MO 
Mr. Stewart stated that five members of Council have shown their disdain for public input on 
outsourcing the City's ambulance service.   
     Mr. Stewart noted a recall Kraft petition was also available for residents’ signatures.   
 
Barbara Chicherio, 720 Harvard Avenue, University City, MO 
Ms. Chicherio announced the public's effort to institute the U City Heritage Sites Initiative.  
This petition contains a proposed Charter amendment that identifies seven historical City-
owned properties seeking to restrict their sale or demolition without a vote by the citizens.  
This petition was available for residents’ signatures.    

 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
J. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  

Mr. Walker advised Council and members of the public that Mr. Richard Wilson, Director of 
Public Works and Parks, is retiring September 16th, and this will be his last Council meeting.  
He stated that Mr. Wilson has done an excellent job and on behalf of the City's administration 
and would like to wish him well in his retirement.  
 
Mr. Wilson thanked everyone for the opportunity to work for U City.  He stated that this has 
been one of his more pleasurable responsibilities.  Although he faced many challenges, his 
belief is that he was able to make improvements that will last for many years.  He stated that 
he had a very special group of employees who always provided him with needed information 
and always willing to do whatever it was that needed to be done.  Mr. Wilson stated that this 
City is important to its residents, so he wishes Council the best, and hopes that everyone can 
come together and accomplish great things.   
 
1. Approval of a six-month extension for the Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) for 7290 Olive 

Blvd. 1166 Midland Blvd. – U-Haul International, Inc. 
 
Councilmember Jennings moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Sharpe. 
 
Councilmember Carr asked Mr. Walker if the groundbreaking had occurred for this 
development.  Mr. Walker stated that it had not occurred. 
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Jennings' motion carried unanimously. 
 
2. Approval to award Ackert Plaza Renovation Project to RV Wagner, Inc. in the amount of 

$141,512.00 with Great Rivers Greenway share would be $25,000.00 and the Economic 
Development Retail Sales Tax share would be $116,512.00. 
 

Councilmember Sharpe moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 
 
Councilmember Carr stated that she would like to see some additional drawings in order to 
understand what the City is paying for.  Mr. Walker stated that staff would be able to provide 
Council with the information.  Councilmember Carr asked if the recommendation could be 
delayed until after the information is received.  Mr. Wilson stated that although it could be 

3 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-3



delayed, his advice would be to approve it tonight.  He stated that the funds are being utilized 
to address safety issues, improve background lighting, the addition of a floodlight and a 
landscaped bed in the location of the four trees.  Councilmember Carr questioned whether 
the improvement would include strings?  Mr. Wilson stated that there will be brick strings and 
a platter.   
     Councilmember Carr stated that it is still her belief that Council was not provided with 
enough information to render a vote at tonight's meeting.   

 
Councilmember Crow stated that Mr. Wilson should provide Council with drawings prior to the 
vote.  Mr. Wilson stated that he would be amenable to the delay and can provide the 
drawings tomorrow. 
 
Councilmember Carr made an amended motion to postpone approval until the next meeting 
and was seconded by Councilmember Crow. 
 
Councilmember Jennings questioned whether there would be a cost increase or unexpected 
costs incurred as a result of approving the motion to postpone?  Mr. Walker stated that there 
would be no consequences in doing so.   
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Carr's motion to postpone carried unanimously. 
 

3. Approval to award for the leaf collection services to Hendel Lawn Care Inc. in the amount 
of $140.00 per hour. 

 
Councilmember Crow moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Sharpe. 
 
Councilmember Carr stated that this recommendation requires approximately $65,000 of fund 
reserves, therefore she would like to how much money was available in reserves?  Mr. 
Walker stated that he would have to provide that information to Council subsequently.  
Councilmember Carr asked if there was enough to cover this award.  Mr. Walker stated that 
there was enough money.   
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Crow's motion carried unanimously. 

 
4. Approval of expenditures of $65,658.87 to City of Clayton for reimbursement on their 2015 

Residential Resurfacing Project work on University City streets.  Funding for this project 
will be $42,142.85 from Fund Reserves and $23,516.01 from Street Construction 

 
Councilmember Carr moved to approve, was seconded by Councilmember Sharpe and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
5. Approval to grant authority to the City Manager to sign contract with CDG Engineers for 

Bridge Reconstruction Project at Kingsland Ave. over northeast branch of River des Peres 
for a maximum compensation of $245,000.00.  Project is grant funded with the City’s 
portion being 20 percent, $49,000.00 and MoDOT responsible for 80 percent or 
$196,000.00. 

 
Councilmember Jennings moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Sharpe. 
 
Mayor Welsch stated that she had asked for a clarification on whether or not there is a 
penalty clause in this contract for non-performance?  Mr. Walker stated that this project deals 
with the design only, but the construction contract will have a penalty cause in the event work 
is not completed within a certain period of time.   
 

4 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-4



Voice vote on Councilmember Jennings motion carried unanimously.   
 
6. Approval to award a contract to Key Equipment for a street sweeper in the amount of 

$185,780.00. 
 
Councilmember Sharpe moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 
 
Councilmember Carr asked where the funds would come from for this contract.  Mr. Wilson 
stated that this item was included in the FY-16 Capital Improvement Sales Tax budget. 
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Sharpe's motion carried unanimously. 

 
7. Approval to grant authority to the City Manager to sign a contract with EDSI, Inc. for 

Forsyth Boulevard Improvements Project not to exceed $215,272.00:  $146,981.99 for 
design services and $68,291.00 for construction engineering services.  City’s grant match 
of 20 percent or $43,054.40 and MoDOT’s match of 80 percent for $172,217.60.   
 

Councilmember Sharpe moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Jennings. 
 
Councilmember Crow asked Mr. Walker if there was a connection between this item and Bill 
9269 that was removed from the agenda.  Mr. Walker stated that there was no connection. 
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Sharpe's motion carried unanimously. 
 
8. Approval to grant authority to the City Manager to sign a contract with MSW Marketing to 

assist the City with creating the layout and publishing of City publications for a $4,150.00 
monthly retainer fee. 

 
Councilmember Kraft moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Sharpe. 
 
Councilmember Carr asked Mr. Walker what had happened to Brighton's proposal for 
services.  Mr. Walker stated that Brighton did not resubmit a proposal.  Councilmember Carr 
asked if the monthly retainer fee would equal the $50,000 previously paid to Brighton.  Mr. 
Walker stated that the fee represents the same amount paid to the previous firm.   
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Kraft's motion carried unanimously. 

 
9. Approval to grant a liquor license, including Sunday sales, to Nex Gen – Delmar LLC dba 

Doughocracy at 6394 Delmar Blvd.  
 
Councilmember Crow moved to approve, was seconded by Councilmember Sharpe and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
10. Approval to grant authority to the City Manager to sign proposal with STL Composting to 

haul City’s leaves and yard waste to their property. 
 

Councilmember Sharpe moved to approve and was seconded by Councilmember Kraft. 
 
Councilmember Carr posed the following questions to City staff: 
1. Will this proposal eliminate the distribution of free mulch?  Mr. Walker stated that it would. 
2. How will the City supply mulch for its own gardens?  Mr. Wilson stated that the City does 

not deliver free mulch.  The City would pay STL Composting to haul the leaves away and 
the City would supply U City In Bloom with 1,000 yards of mulch for a negotiated price of 

5 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-5



$9,000.  He stated that residents will also have the option of having mulch delivered to 
their home.  

3. Is the City's rate $35.00 per load?  Mr. Wilson stated that the City charges $35.00 for 
delivery, plus $8.00 for every yard of mulch.  

4. Is it correct that STL Composting's delivery fee is $80.00?  Mr. Wilson stated that it was.  
 
Councilmember Carr stated that even though she understands that the City has a shortage of 
land needed to produce mulch, which is yet another loss of services for residents.  Therefore 
she would like to see this issue discussed at a public hearing before a final decision is made.   
 
Councilmember Crow stated that not only a loss of service, but the City is passing on another 
fee to its citizens.  He asked if this proposal had been reviewed by any of the City's 
Commissions.  Mr. Wilson stated that it had been discussed by the Green Practices 
Commission.   
 
Councilmember Kraft stated that as the liaison to both Green Practices and the Park 
Commissions, he can report that this item has been under consideration for roughly two 
years.  The problem that Green Practices was concerned with is that the size of the mulching 
facility is so small that it's polluting River des Peres.  He stated that multiple alternatives were 
explored; sharing a facility with Wellston or the City of Clayton, neither of which were doable.  
Councilmember Kraft stated that his wife is a major consumer of U City's mulch since it is part 
of her business.   
 
Councilmember Crow stated that if Councilmember Kraft's wife is one of the largest 
consumers then his belief is that this proposal creates a conflict of interest to him.   
 
Councilmember Kraft stated that his wife has been getting it for free, so there is no conflict of 
interest.  He also noted that MSD and the State of Missouri are not happy with the City's 
current facility.   
 
Councilmember Crow stated that over the years he has learned that when somebody says an 
issue was discussed by a commission, but no vote was taken, there is cause for concern.  He 
stated this recommendation should be postponed until both the Parks and Green Practice 
Commissions have had an opportunity to discuss it, take a vote and render their 
recommendation to Council. 
 
Councilmember Carr concurred with Councilmember Crow's suggestion to postpone, and in 
addition, asked that a public hearing be held.    
 
Councilmember Jennings made an amended motion to postpone for 45 days until further 
alternatives have been investigated by City staff and Green Practices and was seconded by 
Councilmember Kraft. 
 
Councilmember Kraft stated that he is not 100 percent certain that Green Practices did not 
vote on this proposal, but was certain that this issue has been open for public discussion 
during their meetings. 
 
Councilmember Carr asked whether this proposal had been discussed by the Parks 
Commission.  Councilmember Kraft stated that it had been discussed, but he is almost 
certain that no vote was taken.   
 
Councilmember Jennings stated that he would like specifics on what the cost would be to 
abate the pollution, downsize or relocate to another area within the City. 
 

6 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-6



Voice vote on Councilmember Jennings' motion to postpone this issue for 45 days carried 
unanimously. 
 
Mayor Welsch stated that as staff gathers this information, she would like everyone to be 
clear about the fact that the City has been in violation of the Clean Water Act for years.  
Currently the City utilizes 1.2 acres of land versus the recommended 15 acres.  She stated 
that she loves U City's mulch, but she also loves the environment, and the Green Practices 
Commission has made a commitment to clean up River des Peres.   

 
L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

BILLS 
1. BILL 9269 – Was Removed 

 
Introduced by Councilmember Sharpe 

2. BILL 9270 - An ordinance to establish a procedure to disclose potential conflicts of 
interest and substantial interests for certain municipal officials; containing an emergency 
clause.   
Mayor Welsch stated that this bill contains an emergency clause, so all three readings 
will be conducted tonight. 
Bill 9270 was read for the first, second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Carr moved to approve Bill 9270 and was seconded by Councilmember Kraft. 
 
Councilmember Crow asked if Council knew this was a pending issue when the August 
meeting was cancelled.  Mayor stated that she did not have an answer to the question, but 
does know that this is an issue that must be addressed every two years. 
 
Roll Call vote was:   
AYES: Councilmembers Kraft, Crow, Sharpe, Carr, Jennings and Mayor Welsch.  
NAYS:   
 

BILL 9270 carried unanimously and became Ordinance 6997. 
 

M. NEW BUSINESS 
RESOLUTIONS 

 
BILLS 
       Introduced by Councilmember Sharpe 
1. BILL 9271 – An ordinance to enable the City of University City, Missouri to join Show Me 

Pace and to join Missouri Clean Energy District, pursuant to Section 67.2800 to 67.2835, 
RSMO, the “Property Assessed Clean Energy Act,” and stating the terms under which 
the City will conduct activities as a member of such districts.  Bill 9271 was read for the 
first time.  
 
Councilmember Carr asked if this was just for City properties or for all residents.  
Councilmember Kraft stated that the Green Practices Commission, which did vote to 
endorse this bill, recommends that it pertain to private, commercial and possibly City or 
Government owned properties.  Councilmember Carr asked if there were penalties 
associated with individuals who decide not to participate.  Councilmember Kraft stated 
that this is a loan program where participants can borrow money for energy or ecological 
upgrades.  The loan mechanisms and legalities can be tricky, but it has the potential for a 
lot of possibilities.  He stated that the City may have had a previous ordinance, but it was 
a specific Pace Program which no longer exists.  This ordinance offers more than one 
program, so you can shop around and determine which program works best for you.  

7 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-7



Councilmember Kraft stated that it also provides an opportunity for the City to access 
funds and pay it back through the savings.   
 
Councilmember Crow asked who submitted this to the City Attorney.  Councilmember 
Kraft stated that City staff had submitted it.   
 
Introduced by Councilmember Sharpe 

2. BILL 9272 – An ordinance amending chapter 610, Article I, Canvassers, Solicitors and 
Peddlers, of the City of University City Municipal Code, to add new sections governing 
Street Performers as provided herein.  Bill 9272 was read for the first time. 
 
Introduced by Councilmember Jennings 

3. BILL 9273 – An ordinance amending certain provisions of the University City Municipal 
Code to comply with Missouri Senate Bill No. 5 (SB5) relating to penalties, court 
procedures, and speeding violations.  Bill 9273 was read for the first time. 

 
      Introduced by Councilmember Crow 

4. BILL 9274 – An ordinance amending Chapter 140 of the University City Municipal Code, 
relating to miscellaneous administrative provisions, by enacting therein a new section to 
be known as “Section 140.025 Ambulance Transportation Service Contracts.” 
Bill requested by Councilmembers Crow and Carr.  Bill 9274 was read for the first time. 
 

Citizen's Comments 
Melanie Bruder, 7815 Gannon Avenue, University City, MO 
Ms. Bruder stated that she is not a member of a special interest group.  She expressed her 
support for Bill 9274 and asked that Council give it their full consideration. 
 
Thomas Jennings,  7055 Forsyth, University City, MO 
Mr. Jennings provided a summary of his experience with the excellent service provided by U 
City's ambulance service and expressed concerns that residents would no longer have this 
same type of service.  He stated that it was embarrassed by the way this issue was handled.  
 
Council's Comments 
Councilmember Crow stated that he appreciated everyone who continued to come to these 
meetings and hoped that everyone will come back to the next meeting when the vote is 
conducted.  For the record, he noted that this ordinance had been submitted to the City 
Attorney, City Manager and City Clerk.   
     Councilmember Crow stated that public safety must be a foundation for each and every 
one of its residents.  Therefore this ordinance was created to:  

• Hold Gateway responsible 
• Ensure that Gateway is complying with the law 
• Ensure residents be informed prior to fees being increased 
• Require management to re-implement a plan for emergency medical transport service 

in the event Gateway's plan does not work 
• Renegotiation the City's Mutual Aid Agreement 
• Ensure that any issues with respect to the use of radios is resolved  

 
Councilmember Carr stated that one reason she supported this ordinance is because of the 
major policy change.  She explained why each component was necessary and provided a few 
details. 

• With respect to the City's shrinking workforce, currently there are four firefighters on 
one truck, three on another truck and one command vehicle.   

• Several members of Council continue to point fingers at the union, when the problem 

8 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-8



stems from decisions made by this administration.   
• The contract states that Gateway can use the City's license for Emergency 

Communication Commission radios.  It is clear that no one can use the City's license.   
• The contract also states that the City should not subsidize Gateway, when in fact, the 

City's purchase of radios for Gateway constitutes a subsidy.   
• An email from the City of Clayton, between Chief Long and Chief Thorpe, states EMS 

Mutual Aid will stop.   
• An email from Mr. Greg Pace to elected officials and staff, with regard to Clause G; 

Maintaining EMS Mutual Aid Agreements, depicts the following statements by Mr. 
Pace; "I support the intent of the clause," as well as, "I urge the City to arrange for 
Abbott and Christian Hospital to serve as a backup 911 EMS providers for U City.  
Insurance is always good and if we need to throw them a few grand to sign an 
agreement then that would be money well spent."  But again, the City's contract with 
Gateway specifically states that U City will not subsidize. 

 
Councilmember Carr encouraged residents to attend the next meeting.  She stated that this 
ordinance attempts to fix something that does not work.  
 
Councilmember Kraft suggested that the information requests contained in clauses A, B and 
C, be provided on an annual basis versus semi-annual. 
     With respect to costs, he noted that whether you're a for-profit or not-for-profit Medicare 
and Medicaid sets their own fees, so providers have no ability to negotiate.  The same is true 
with respect to insurance companies; Gateway cannot balance-bill over what an insurance 
company has allowed for their rate.   
     Councilmember Kraft stated that Federal Laws are quite clear that if you are being treated 
in an emergency situation hospitals and ambulance service are required to treat you first and 
then inquire about insurance.   
 
Councilmember Crow stated that he would consider Councilmember Kraft's suggestion, but if 
it is so simple to do it annually, then it should not be hard to provide the same information 
twice a year.  He noted that Councilmember Kraft did state one thing of importance; whether 
you have a high deductible or a low deductible is between you and your insurance company.  
This is one more time where this City has decreased services and increased costs.   

 
N. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Chris Paavola, 7321 Amherst Drive, University City, MO 
Mr. Paavola stated that he was speaking on behalf of U City Needs Me, an independent 
initiative of non-profit and for-profit organizations serving U City, with a mission to develop 
creative ways to lead a positive conversation about the City's future.   
     He stated that U City Needs Me mailed out approximately 13,000 cards to residents asking 
about their hopes for the future of U City.  These responses are available on the organization's 
website and once they have been analyzed, a list will be created to illustrate the most 
prevalent of those needs and expectations.  Mr. Paavola stated that the list will be revealed at 
the Heman Park Community Center on October 3rd, between 5 and 8 p.m., and invited 
everyone to attend.  Partner organizations have been asked to provide presentations on how 
they can best address the needs identified by this campaign 
 
Laurine Polsky, 520 North and South Road, University City, MO 
Ms. Polsky stated that she was a pediatric nurse for 40 years at Children's Hospital and has 
had numerous encounters with Gateway and stated the only thing they know how to do is to 
transport.  She then posed the following questions: 

1. How will one paramedic be able to perform CPR, get an airway open, conduct cardiac 
chest compressions and start an IV?  

9 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-9



2. Will Gateway's ambulances be equipped with the type equipment needed to provide 
pediatric care?   

 
Greg Pace, 7171 Westmoreland, University City, MO 
Mr. Pace stated that he would like to address several issues brought up at tonight's meeting. 

• The County owns the ECC license, not the City, so no licensing is required. 
• In the agreement, the ECC agrees to transfer ownership of the subscriber radios to U 

City.   
• Currently the City owns these radios and the plan is to loan them to Gateway, so no 

financial subsidy is involved.   
• In this contract the prohibition on ownership states that U City shall not transfer, sell, 

give or otherwise dispose of the radios, but it does not prohibit a loan.   
• The Director of the ECC has already agreed that U City has the right to loan these 

radios to Gateway. 
• Should there be a default in the agreement, the process requires written notice.  If no 

written notice is received the default will proceed to mediation and/or court within 90 
days.  

• The ECC has initiated no process under this contract to indicate that U City is guilty of 
any violations. 

• The first 37 calls from Gateway's August report indicated a response time of 3 minutes, 
20 seconds.  U City's fire-based ambulance's response time was 4 minutes, 46 seconds 
based on an average of 8,000 calls.  Although 37 calls does not a statistically valid 
model make, he is sure that it is a hint of what residents should expect to see once the 
contract is initiated.   

• U City will continue their policy of sending out an ALS pumper with four paramedics on 
all life-threatening calls.   

• The contract also states that when U City's paramedics are on-site; they shall be in 
control and have the right to ride in the ambulance, if they so desire. 

Mr. Pace stated that he has worked with Mr. Wilson on various projects and wished to thank 
him for his service.  
 
Sarah Heyman, 738 Harvard, University City, MO 
Ms. Hayman posed the following questions: 
1. Would Council be willing to take up the issue of PILOT; (Payment In Lieu of Taxes), with 

Washington University to help augment the City's financial needs?  She stated that all large 
universities that hold substantial endowments are now required to pay surrounding  
municipalities a sum close to or equal to the amount that the taxes would be for services, 
and Clayton has recently started to receive PILOT from Wash U. 

2. Why is the City not utilizing the old library as the courthouse?  She stated that every week 
staff is required to take everything to Heman Community Center, as opposed to next door, 
where customarily records, books and meetings have been maintained.   

 
Felix Simmons, 752 Radcliff, University City, MO 
Mr. Simmons stated that the free mulch is yet another service that differentiated U City from 
other municipalities.  As a voting member of the public, all he would ask for is transparency 
and to be provided with enough information to form his own opinions.  He then asked if 
anyone could provide an answer to the question about Mutual Aid. 
 
Bart Stewart, 714 Harvard Avenue, University City, MO 
Mr. Stewart posed the following questions: 

1. Did the five members of Council that voted to approve Gateway's contract sit down to 
discuss whether the contract was good for the City?   

10 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-10



• Has discussion with medical and financial professionals that live in U City taken 
place to determine if this contract would equate to a cost-savings.  

2. Are the cost-savings really worth the reduction of services?   
3. Is it appropriate for elected officials to only answer questions from a select group of 

constituents? 
4.  Isn't the purpose of conducting a public meeting to provide citizens with information 

about upcoming recommendations that are being considered? 
• Councilmember Jennings went on social media stating some residents were 

simply uninformed. 
 
Judith Gainer, 721 Harvard, University City, MO 
Ms. Gainer posed the following questions: 

1. Why was the Annex building allowed to deteriorate? 
2. Why is Mr. Pace the chief spokesman and advocate for this contract with Gateway? 

 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
Mayor Welsch made the appointments that were needed. 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

• Change September 21, 2015, Council meeting to Thursday, September 24, 2015.  Requested 
by Mayor Welsch and Councilmember Jennings. 

 
Mayor Welsch stated that the City's tax rate must be approved during the last meeting of this 
month, and she and Councilmembers Sharpe and Jennings will be out of town at the Missouri 
Municipal League's Annual meeting and it is at this City Council meeting where Council 
approves the annual tax rate.  The numbers for calculating next year’s tax rate are not 
available to the City until right before the last meeting of September.  Mayor Welsch noted that 
she and Councilmember Jennings would like Council to have more than four people voting on 
approval of the 2016 tax rate. 
 
Councilmembers Kraft and Crow stated that they would be out of town on the twenty-fourth.   
 
Councilmember Carr stated that her preference would be to hold the meeting on the twenty-
first since the Advisory Board for Washington University is prepared to deliver their report that 
day.   
 
Mayor Welsch stated that her hope was that the report would be presented to Council as a 
whole.   
 
Councilmember Kraft asked whether the twenty-eighth would be a better date.   
 
Mayor Welsch asked Mr. Walker if Council met on the twenty-eighth if that would be okay with 
the County tax rate submittal deadline.  Tina Charumilind, Director of Finance, advised Mayor 
Welsch that the deadline for submitting the tax rate to St. Louis County is October 1st. 
 
Councilmember Crow stated that he believes the community is getting tired of Council moving 
the meeting dates around and that Council should hold themselves accountable to the 
calendar that they established.  He stated that the constant requests to change meeting dates 
leads him to believe that there is a desire to reduce the number of residents in the audience.   
 

11 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-11



For the record, Mayor Welsch stated that the only one meeting had been changed – the 
August meeting; Council as a whole last October agreed to eliminate the second meetings 
during the months of July, August and December.   
 
Councilmember Carr stated that the last meeting in August was moved to a week earlier, 
wherein she, Councilmember Crow and the residents were ambushed with the Gateway 
contract.  So she is less than willing to change the date.   Councilmember Carr stated that 
over a year ago Council agreed to allow video-conferencing for meeting, but to date it has not 
been implemented. 
 
Mayor Welsch informed Councilmember Carr for the record that the City does have the 
technology to conduct meetings remotely. 
 
Councilmember Jennings stated that he would be amenable to the twenty-eighth, because the 
Missouri Municipal League (MML) is an important meeting where municipal officials learn 
about the fundamentals of being an elected official and other upcoming legislation.    
 
Councilmember Sharpe stated that U City does not have a strong presence at MML.  However 
he has served on the Board of Directors, been chairman of a committee, and currently is on 
the Governing Board, so he is married to the MML.  He stated that there were also two former 
members of Council, whose pictures are up on the wall, who served as presidents.  So for 
anyone to indicate something about not being on the up and up is ludicrous.  Councilmember 
Sharpe stated that every member of this Council should participate in the MML because of the 
value it brings to U City and its residents.   
 
Councilmember Crow stated that he has to ask the question; what do you think the people on 
the wall would think of this Council?  He stated that any suspicion was created by the actions 
taken in August, which has nothing to do with the MML.  But after being on Council for almost 
eight years, he did not remember receiving a report from a member of Council who attended 
one of these meetings.   
 
Point of Information:  Councilmember Kraft stated that September 28 is a Jewish holiday and 
the meeting date could not be moved to that date.  He asked if both Mayor Welsch and 
Councilmember Sharpe are absent, would the Chair go to the senior Councilperson.  Mayor 
Welsch stated that it would go to Councilmember Glickert.   
 
Councilmember Carr informed Councilmember Sharpe that her statement had nothing at all to 
do with the MML.   
 
Councilmember Jennings made a motion to move the September 21st Council meeting to 
September 24th. 
 
Mayor Welsch stated that in the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated and the meeting will 
remain on the twenty-first. 
 

Roll Call vote was:   
AYES: Councilmembers Sharpe, Jennings and Mayor Welsch.  
NAYS:  Councilmembers Carr, Crow and Kraft.  
 
Councilmember Sharpe asked what would happen if there is no quorum for the meeting on the 
twenty-first?  Mayor Welsch stated that the meeting would be cancelled.  But, if for some 
reason that should occur, the meeting will have to be rescheduled later that week or the next 
week because Council must approve the tax rate by October 1st.   

 
12 

 

September 24, 2015 E-2-12



• Fatigue and safety consideration in 48 hour firefighter shifts.  Requested by 
Councilmembers Kraft and Jennings. 

Councilmember Kraft stated that he shares everyone's concerns about safety and this is a 
parallel issue related to the firefighters.   
     There is a firefighter culture in the St. Louis region where workers on 48 hours shifts are a 
danger to firefighters and citizens, and it's time to start the discussion to change that culture.  
Changing a culture is hard.  There was a time when it was a part of the football culture for 
players to continue playing despite debilitating concussions.  Change occurred only after the 
data showed the detrimental effects of repeated traumatic brain injuries.  The long hours of 
the medical culture only changed when data showed that tired caregivers provide poor quality 
care.   
     Sleep-deprived people function like they are drunk.  Expert consensus statements on 
truckers in the transport industry state that "Sleep deprivation is the largest cause of transport 
accidents, even compared to drug and alcohol abuse.  Limiting work hours can prevent these 
accidents."  Federal rules now limit the hours that truck drivers can drive and medical interns 
can work.   
     There are multiple studies on the subject of firefighter/EMS workers and fatigue, and the 
Federal Government has summarized these studies at the National Highway and 
Transportation Safety Administration's website as follows:  "Fatigue in emergency medical 
service EMS systems:  not only is severe fatigue present in 50 percent of the EMS providers 
surveyed, but the drowsy or fatigued EMS providers are substantially more likely to be injured 
on the job, commit a medical error or perform a safety-compromising behavior". 
     Councilmember Kraft stated that he found the Minneapolis Fire Study (MFS), to be one of 
the most persuasive.   The MFS is a controlled experiment with two full years of data in a 
department of 489 employees covering 59 miles and serving 383,000 people.  They respond 
to about 35,000 calls per year.  The Department was divided into two groups, one group 
worked 48 hour shifts and the other worked 24 hour shifts.  The results after two years were 
so compelling that Minneapolis stopped 48 hour shifts.   When comparing the two shifts, the 
48 hour shift had 42 percent more disciplinary actions, 18 percent more sick leave, 18 percent 
more work-related injuries, 38 percent more motor vehicle accidents and a 6 percent slower 
turnout time.  Even more interesting is the fact that for the 48 hour shift they compared the first 
24 hours to their second 24 hours.  What they found is that the second 24 hours of a 48 hour 
shift had 112 percent more motor vehicles accidents and 44 percent work-related injuries.   
     Currently U City's firefighters work 48 hour shifts, and it is his understanding that this issue 
was brought up in the most recent contract negotiations and that the union was not 
enthusiastic about implementing changes.  Councilmember Kraft stated that he thinks it is time 
to reopen this discussion by asking the union and City management to modify the current 
contract to allow for shorter, safer working hours.  He urged everyone to put aside their 
differences and work together to come up with a solution that focuses on the safety of the 
City's employees and its citizens.   
 
Councilmember Crow stated that Councilmember Kraft voted to approve the firefighter's 
contract earlier this year with the 48 hour shifts contained in it.  So while the research is nice, 
his belief is that most people in this audience understand that what is really happening is that 
a number of his colleagues are now trying to justify their actions for outsourcing EMS.   
     Councilmember Crow stated that what no one has explained to residents is that as a result 
of their wages, most, if not all of Gateway's employees work two or three jobs.  He stated that 
residents have been told that there will be a fire truck coming along behind that Gateway 
ambulance with EMS paramedics on it.  U City was supposed to have eleven firefighters and 
now they are down to seven; that still have to make calls and provide mutual aid to other 
communities.  Although he does not disagree with the studies, and is happy to have this 
conversation, he thought that the real reason for this discussion is the fact that there has been 
too much blow-back about outsourcing the City's ambulance services.  
 

13 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-13



Councilmember Carr stated that most of the information provided was not journals, but 
popular media reports.  She stated that having a PhD in chemistry taught her that the very first 
thing to do was search the journal literature where your colleagues can vet the work they are 
doing.  So while the MFS study contained all of the elements for research, it is simply a survey 
of twenty-nine units.  What you want to see after reading through all of the data are the 
conclusions and expectations.  What it states is, "It is important to note that no organization 
surveyed indicated that they were considering a move back to a shorter shift.  No obvious 
problems have come in these fire departments related to the longer shift or the labor 
management environment".   Their final recommendation states, “The Minneapolis Fire 
Department should continue to monitor the work effects of the 48 hour shift on the 
organization".   
     Councilmember Carr stated that this research used two years of comparative data, and 
that's not a lot of data points, which is why they state, "Research used two years of 
comparative data.  Study of additional data available in future years will allow management to 
form a more complete picture of the resource costs involved in an extended shift".   So while 
this is a topic for discussion, it's a policy that will probably have to be made, once the fire 
fighters’ three year contract expires. 
 
Councilmember Kraft stated that he had expressed his objections to the 48 hour shifts before 
the contract was signed.  However since the contract had an Evergreen Clause, Council had 
no choice but to honor the 48 hour shifts which commenced approximately eight years ago.  
He voted for the contract on the grounds that the City needed to make peace with the 
firefighters. 
     He stated that Councilmember Carr was correct in that the second part of the MFS was a 
survey of numerous fire chiefs to inquire whether they had had any problems associated with 
48 hour shifts.  Their answer was, "No, we're not having any problems".  But that's how things 
were done in the old days, even though their own data revealed that there were problems.  
Councilmember Kraft stated that the data was so clear, that the people in Minneapolis got rid 
of 48 hour shifts.  The reason he included the media reports was to illustrate that other places 
have made the same decision.   
 He stated that there was a long list of academic studies that he could have pulled, but his 
intent was to pick a study that was particularly well controlled, with a large fire department that 
had enough data over two years to make the decision that 48 hour shifts were unsafe.   
 
Councilmember Jennings stated that initially he had concerns about the fact that it was only a 
two year study and the statement regarding continuing to monitor the work effects.  But later in 
that same paragraph it states, "If the trends identified in this research continue, management 
should consider moving back to shorter shifts during future contract negotiations with the labor 
Union".  So his belief is that this is an issue Council should take into consideration when it's 
time to renegotiate their contract.   
 
Councilmember Carr requested that Council be provided with data related to the accidents 
and unsafe behavior that has occurred during the period of time since the implementation of 
48 hour shifts.   
 
Councilmember Kraft stated that the advantage of conducting a study with 389 employees is 
that you have a large end.  The problems associated with conducting a survey of a small 
department with 36 firefighters is that it is not statically significant and you have nothing to 
compare it to.  He stated that he hasn't seen any data to indicate that 48 hour shifts are 
particularly better in any way. 
 
Councilmember Crow stated that Councilmember Carr was simply asking for a report, not a 
study, which seems to be a valid request.   
 

14 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-14



Councilmember Kraft stated that he thinks the more data the better, but just for clarification he 
would ask Councilmember Crow if his argument was that 48 hour shifts are safer than 24 hour 
shifts.  Councilmember Crow stated that he had not made an argument.  His only comment 
was that the City has a contract that everyone voted on and he doesn't think the public even 
believes what Councilmember Kraft is saying.   
     Councilmember Kraft stated that in spite of the contract and the public's belief, when you 
look at the numbers, they say that 48 hour shifts are dangerous to workers, their subjects and 
citizens.  He then asked Councilmember Crow if he was saying that he thought 48 hour shifts 
were safer.  Councilmember Crow stated that he did not think he had said that at all, but what 
he would say is that two EMT paramedics in an ambulance is better than one.   

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

In the interest of fairness and non-bias, Councilmember Carr asked that Mayor Welsch be 
consistent with her recitation of meeting guidelines prior to the Citizen's Comments portion of 
the agenda.  Mayor Welsch stated that sometimes she forgets. 

     Councilmember Carr stated that there is specific language within the meeting guidelines 
that states, "No additional requests will be accepted for a specific agenda item once the 
discussion has commenced."  However this process is rarely adhered to and last week she 
found it incredibly offensive when approximately twenty requests to speak were not honored.  
So either the rule should be administered at every meeting or not at all.  For the record, Mayor 
Welsch stated that she had called the name of everyone who had submitted a request. 
 
Councilmember Carr made the following requests: 
• That she be provided with the City Attorney and Labor Attorney's opinions regarding U 

City's status with respect to a breach of the User Agreement contained in the ECC 
contract. 

• That she is provided with the audio tapes and supporting documentation in order to 
evaluate Gateway's stellar performance of thirty-seven runs. 

• That she be provided with a copy of the current zoning code for the property located at 601 
Trinity Avenue (the former Delmar Harvard), to determine whether it has been changed 
from public activity to a parking lot. 

 
Councilmember Crow stated that he would like to express his condolences to the family of 
Mr. John Woodward who passed this week.  He stated that he was a fine citizen with whom 
many have had the pleasure to work with.  
     He then thanked Mr. Wilson for his service to this community and wished him the best of 
luck as he enters the next chapter of his life.    
     Councilmember Crow asked residents to remember what occurred during tonight's Study 
Session with respect to the Police Station; because his hope is that his colleagues have now 
learned that public engagement is a good thing and should be included as a part of the 
process. 
     He noted that many of the items Council approved tonight have funds that are being taken 
out of cash reserves.  Councilmember Crow encouraged everyone to continue their 
participation in the future.   
 
Councilmember Jennings stated that Mr. Wilson has been an engaging leader that he would 
like to thank him for a job well done.  
     He stated that in his opinion, some of the words that are expressed during these meetings 
simply reflect a failure to communicate.  So as his way of extending the olive branch he would 
like to propose that Council initiate the process of community engagement to address the 
obvious need for a new or rehabbed police station.  He stated that one way to put this on the 
fast track is for each member of Council to select a few individuals in the community who 
would be willing to start looking at the issue and set a timetable for decisions to be made.  
Councilmember Jennings stated that he would like to see groundbreaking by the end of this 

15 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-15



year, which meant that everyone needed to start talking, agreeing and be willing to answer a 
lot of questions.  He stated that his belief is that everyone on this dais is passionate about 
their responsibilities and no matter what others might perceive it is a group that can work 
together. 
 
Mayor Welsch made the following announcements: 

• The Resource Fair and Yard Sale will be this Saturday at Centennial Commons from 9 
a.m. to 2 p.m.  Free document shredding will be available from 9 a.m. to 12 p.m.   

• The Puppy Pool Party will be held on September 12th and 13th at Heman Park Pool 
• The Natatorium is now open and available for use until May 2016 
• Free Health Screenings will take place on September 19th at the U City Public Library 
• The U City Garden Tour will be held on September 20th 
• Fall classes will soon be starting at the Green Center.  Please check their website for 

details 
• The high school's Homecoming celebration will be held on October 10th. 

 
Mayor Welsch offered her thanks to Mr. Wilson for all of his hard work over the past three 
and a half years.  
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT  
Mayor Shelley Welsch adjourned the meeting at 9:21 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Joyce Pumm, City Clerk, MRCC/CMC 

16 
 

September 24, 2015 E-2-16



September 24, 2015 E-2-17



September 24, 2015 E-2-18



September 24, 2015 E-2-19



September 24, 2015 E-2-20



  
 
 
     Council Agenda Item Cover 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 24, 2015 
 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Millar Park Field Renovation and Irrigation 
 
          AGENDA SECTION: City Manager’s Report 
 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:      Yes 
 

 
BACKGROUND:  In early 2012, the City received a planning grant from the Municipal 
Park Grant Commission to complete a master plan study in Millar Park.  During this 
planning process, the City received input from the community through two public meetings.  
The plan was then reviewed and approved by the City’s Park Commission and City 
Council.  With City Council approval, the City applied for a grant from the Municipal Park 
Grant Commission to complete a third phase of improvements in Millar Park. 
 
On February 28, 2015, the City entered into an agreement with the Municipal Park Grant 
Commission for the Millar Park Playground Area, Sports Fields, and Parking 
Improvements Project.  Because of the specialization of the project, City staff has 
developed two (2) separate bid packages for the general construction work.  This project 
addresses specifically the field renovations and landscaping. The second project will 
address the general park and playground improvements. This project is part of the Millar 
Park Playground Area, Sports Fields, and Parking Improvements approved budget of 
$539,290.00 for construction, of that $456,700.00 is grant funded. City Council has already 
awarded a contract to Graybar for the electrical work in the amount of $38,457.49.  
 
The City advertised for bids for the Millar Park Field Renovation and Irrigation Project and 
posted the bid on the City’s website. On September 3, the City opened bids for this project.  
The tabulation of bid proposals is as follows: 
 

Contractor Base Bid Price 
Professional Irrigation Systems, LLC $85,471.00 
Houska, Inc. $136,080.86 

  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the above information, it is recommended that the City 
Council gives authority to the City Manager to contract with Professional Irrigation 
Systems, LLC to complete the Millar Park Field Renovation and Irrigation Project in the 
amount of $85,471.00.  If authority is given, the Municipal Park Grant Commission share 
will be $72,650.35 and the City share will be $12,820.65.  The funds for these services will 
come from account number 14-40-90_8010.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
• Unexecuted Contract for Project 1201 – Millar Park Field Renovation and Irrigation. 
• Millar Park Field Renovations and Irrigation Drawing 
September 24, 2015 K-1-1



W

W

W

W

W

S
S

U
G

E

U

G

E

U

G

E

U

G

E

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

T

N:1034779.47

E:867193.89

N:1034914.50

E:867128.59

N:1035025.89

E:867357.97

N:1034745.19

E:867389.01

N:1034750.76

E:867659.06

N:1034894.54

E:867588.86

N:1035052.48

E:867912.36

N:1034908.71

E:867982.56

N:1034720.55

E:867906.53

N:1034992.41

E:867426.16

N:1035016.32

E:867956.71

N:1034770.08

E:867610.65

N:1034890.86

E:867423.28

N:1034782.58

E:867141.82

Project Title:

Drawing Title:

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
PU

B
LI

C
 W

O
R

K
S 

A
N

D
 P

A
R

K
S

68
01

 D
EL

M
A

R
 B

O
U

LE
V

A
R

D
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y

, M
IS

SO
U

R
I  

63
13

0

Seal:

Drawing Number:

This drawing and details on it, as an instrument

of service, is the property of PDS or its

consultants and may be used for this specific

project only and shall not be loaned, copied or

reproduced without the consent of PDS.

Project Number:

Drawn By:

Issue Date:

J1510

No. Revision Date

JEN/JRH

08/11/2015

Name:
License No:
Company License No: LAC-2006001845

LA-  12

M
IL

LA
R

 P
A

R
K

Project Numbers:

Prepared by:

727 North First Street Suite 360

Saint  Loui s ,  M is sou r i  63102

P 314.241.3600 F 314.241.3601

FI
EL

D
 R

EN
O

V
A

TI
O

N
 &

 IR
R

IG
A

TI
O

N

UNIVERSITY CITY:1201

76
03

 C
A

R
LE

TO
N

 A
V

EN
U

E,
 U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y

, M
O

. 6
31

30

Noel T. Fehr
08/11/15

SPORTS FIELDS -

OVERALL LAYOUT PLAN

6.00

0

One Inch = Forty Feet

120'40' 80'

1. SPORT FIELDS PACKAGE INCLUDES:

a. TURF RESTORATION (INCLUDING MOWING, HERBICIDE

TREATMENT, CORE AERATION, SEEDBED PREPARATION,

SEEDING AND LAWN ESTABLISHMENT (SEE JOB SPECIAL

PROVISIONS FOR REQUIREMENTS)

b. TURF IRRIGATION SYSTEM (SEE DRAWINGS 6.03 AND

6.04)

c. SKINNED INFIELD LASER GRADING AND TREATMENT

(SEE JOB SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR REQUIREMENTS)

d. COORDINATION WITH THE PARK CONSTRUCTION

PACKAGE CONTRACTOR.

2. PARK CONSTRUCTION PACKAGE INCLUDES CONCRETE

SIDEWALKS, PLAYGROUND, PARKING LOT RENOVATION AND

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO THE SPORT

FIELDS PACKAGE WORK:

a. CONCRETE SIDEWALKS AND PADS AROUND AND

ADJACENT TO THE SPORT FIELDS INFIELD.

b. PROTECTIVE FENCING

c. BACKSTOPS

d. PLAYERS BENCHES

e. BLEACHERS

f. TURF ESTABLISHMENT BEHIND THE CONCRETE PADS

3. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND JOB CONDITIONS AND

REPORT, IN WRITING, ANY DISCREPANCIES OR OMISSIONS

WHICH WOULD INTERFERE WITH THE SATISFACTORY

COMPLETION OF WORK.

4. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE

FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL CODES AS WELL AS

APPLICABLE  UTILITY PROVIDER REQUIREMENTS.

5. PROTECT ALL EXISTING VEGETATION SHOWN AS TO REMAIN

PER THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

GENERAL NOTESLEGEND

SEEDING OR SODDING - N.I.C.

(PARK CONSTRUCTION PACKAGE)

TURF RESTORATION

(SPORT FIELDS PACKAGE)

INFIELD RESTORATION

(SPORT FIELDS PACKAGE)

SEE SHT. 6.01

SEE SHT. 6.02

LIMITS OF SPORTSFIELD

RESTORATION

September 24, 2015 K-1-2



CONTRACT 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the ______ day of _____________________, 20___, by and between 

City of University City, MISSOURI (hereinafter called the CITY) and    Professional Irrigation Systems   , a    

Company      with offices at    304 TWC Court, Lake St. Louis, MO, 63367    (herein after called the 

CONTRACTOR), WITNESSETH, that whereas the CITY intends to construct improvements for Project 

No. 1201 – Millar Park Field Renovation & Irrigation, hereinafter called the PROJECT, in accordance 

with the Drawings, Specifications and Contract Documents prepared by the City of University City. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, The OWNER and CONTRACTOR for the considerations hereinafter set forth, 
agree as follows: 
 
THE CONTRACTOR AGREES to furnish all the necessary labor, materials, equipment, tools and 
services necessary to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner all work required for the 
construction of the PROJECT, in strict compliance with the Contract Documents herein mentioned, which 
are hereby made a part of the Contract. 
 
a. Contract Time:  Work under this Agreement shall be commenced upon written Notice to Proceed, and 

shall be completed within ninety (90) calendar days of the authorization date in the Notice to 
Proceed. 

b. Liquidated Damages:  The Contractor hereby expressly agrees to pay the City the sum of Two 
Hundred Dollars ($200.00) per day for each and every day, Sundays and legal holidays only 
excepted, after calendar days have expired during or upon which said work or any part thereof 
remains incomplete and unfinished. 

c. Subcontractors:  The Contractor agrees to bind every subcontractor by the terms of the Contract 
Documents.  The Contract Documents shall not be construed as creating any contractual relation 
between any subcontractor and the City.  No sub-contractor shall further subcontract any of his work. 

 
 THE CITY AGREES to pay, and the Contractor agrees to accept, in full payment for the performance 
of this Contract, the amount as stipulated in the Proposal, which is: 
 

Eighty-five-thousand-four-hundred-seventy-one and 00/100   Dollars 
 

 ($ 85,471.00 )  
 
Final dollar amount will be computed from actual quantities constructed as verified by the Engineer and in 
accordance with the unit prices set out in the Proposal. 
 
(See following pages) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September 24, 2015 K-1-3



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 
 
 The Contract comprises the Contract Documents as bound herein and the Drawings.  In the event 
that any provision of one Contract Document conflicts with the provision of another Contract Document, 
the provision in that Contract Document first listed below shall govern, except as otherwise specifically 
stated: 
 

A. Contract (This Instrument) 
B. Addenda to Contract Documents (if applicable) 
C. Conditions of the Contract 
D. Remaining Legal and Procedural Documents 

1. Proposal 
2. Instruction to Bidders 
3. Invitation for Bids 
4. All forms submitted as part of the Bid (i.e. Subcontractor Approval Form) 

E. Special Provisions 
F. Annual Wage Order 
G. Drawings/Location Maps 
H. General Provisions 
I. Bonds/Attachments 

1. Performance/Payment Bond 
2. Email Communications 
3. Revised Quantities and Locations 
4. Change Orders to the Quantities (if applicable) 

 
AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE ENGINEER: 
 
 All work shall be done under the general inspection of the Engineer.  The Engineer shall decide any 
and all questions which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of materials furnished, work 
performed, rate of progress of work, interpretations of Drawings and Specifications and all questions as to 
the acceptable fulfillment of the Contract on the part of the Contractor. 
 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: 
 
 This Agreement and all of the covenants hereof shall insure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 
Owner and Contractor respectively and his partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives.  
Neither the Owner nor the Contractor shall have the right to assign, transfer, or sublet his interests or 
obligation hereunder without consent of the other party. 
 
  
  

September 24, 2015 K-1-4



* In making out this form the title that is not applicable should be struck out.  For example, if the 
Contractor is a corporation and this form is to be executed by its president, the words "Sole owner, a 
partner, secretary, etc." should be struck out. 
 
The Contract contains a binding arbitration provision that may be enforced by the parties. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement: 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________                               _____________________________ 
                                                                                                                           Title 
                                                                                                                                                             
Date: __________________________     By: _____________________________                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                      "Contractor" 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________             
                   City Clerk 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Date: __________________________                                                     
 
 
         
 
 
  CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY              CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________     By: ____________________________                                                                                                                                                          
                   City Attorney              City Manager 
 
Date: __________________________     Date: __________________________ 
                                                                                               

September 24, 2015 K-1-5



September 24, 2015 K-2-1



September 24, 2015 K-2-2



September 24, 2015 K-2-3



September 24, 2015 K-2-4



September 24, 2015 K-2-5



September 24, 2015 K-2-6



September 24, 2015 K-2-7



September 24, 2015 K-2-8



September 24, 2015 K-2-9



September 24, 2015 K-2-10



September 24, 2015 K-2-11



September 24, 2015 K-2-12



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2015      

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) 

Program AGENDA SECTION:   New Business

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW: 

Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) programs provide funding for energy efficient 
building upgrades and renewable energy – at this time specifically for commercial properties. 
The financing is more like a tax that would be included on the real estate tax bill. The amount 
of this payment is directly related to the energy cost savings that will be incurred based on the 
energy efficiency upgrade.  This "tax" is associated with the property instead of the individual 
and is transferred to the new owners when the property is sold.   
Cities participate in PACE for the following benefits: 

• No costs, liability or unwanted exposure to participate.
• Provide businesses a cost effective solution for construction improvements.
• Generate revenue for the city: PACE will stimulate additional construction, resulting in

more permits, more construction jobs, and increase property values.
• Attract new businesses: PACE is a helpful tool for funding development projects.
• Support the community commitment to Energy and Environment: PACE projects must

reduce energy consumption or produce renewable energy.

Each PACE program uses a Clean Energy Development Board (CEDB).  The board generally 
contracts with a 3rd party program administrator.  The CEDB will tap traditional lenders such 
as banks for projects, but the CEDB has the authority to create bond issues and determine 
other financing avenues as they see fit.  University City may or may not elect to appoint a 
member to the respective board. 

Two regional PACE programs are already in place; one is the Missouri Clean Energy District 
program.  Various cities and St. Louis municipalities are already members of this program. 
The second PACE program is the Show Me PACE Clean Energy District.  Several University 
City businesses have expressed interest in energy efficient projects with the Show Me PACE 
program. By joining multiple PACE programs, PACE users benefit by competition in the 
market. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Green Practices Commission is recommending that the City Council approve the 
attached ordinance granting University City to participate in the Missouri Clean Energy District 
PACE program and the Show Me PACE program.  The attached ordinance has been 
reviewed and approved by the City attorney. 

September 24, 2015 L-1-1



INTRODUCED BY:      DATE:   September 8, 2015 

BILL NO.    9271           ORDINANCE NO.   

AN ORDINANCE TO ENABLE THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 
TO JOIN SHOW ME PACE AND TO JOIN MISSOURI CLEAN ENERGY 
DISTRICT, PURSUANT TO SECTIONS §67.2800 TO §67.2835, RSMO, THE 
“PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY ACT,” AND STATING THE TERMS 
UNDER WHICH THE CITY WILL CONDUCT ACTIVITIES AS A MEMBER OF 
SUCH DISTRICTS. 
 

WHEREAS, the 95th General Assembly of the State of Missouri has adopted the 
Property Assessment Clean Energy Act, Sections 67.2800 to 67.2835, Revised Statutes of 
Missouri (the "PACE Act"); and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the health, safety, and welfare of the City 
of University City, Missouri and its residents to encourage the development, production, 
and efficient use of clean energy and renewable energy, as well as the installation of 
energy efficiency improvements to publicly and privately owned real property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the primary intent of funding energy efficiency and renewable 
energy improvements pursuant to the PACE Act is to promote the public purposes 
described above; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section §67.2810.1, RSMo. authorizes one or more Municipalities 
(as defined in Section §67.2800.7, RSMo.) to establish a Clean Energy Development 
Board to initiate and administer a Property Assessed Clean Energy (“PACE”) Program so 
that owners of qualifying property can access funding for energy efficiency 
improvements or renewable energy improvements to the properties located in such 
Municipalities; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2015, a clean energy development board named Show 
Me PACE was created with the intention that all Municipalities within the State of 
Missouri would be eligible to join and participate by approving an appropriate ordinance 
or resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 3, 2011, a clean energy development board now named 
the Missouri Clean Energy District was created with the intention that all Municipalities 
within the State of Missouri would be eligible to join and participate by approving an 
appropriate ordinance or resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City of University City, Missouri and 
its residents to join and participate in Show Me PACE and join and participate  in Missouri 
Clean Energy District. 
 

 
 
 
9283/001/09170356.docx; 

September 24, 2015 L-1-2



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: The City hereby approves and authorizes joining and participating in 
Show Me PACE and joining and participating in the Missouri Clean Energy District 
based on the following: 

September 24, 2015 L-1-3



A. Title and Definitions. 
 

1. Title. This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as “The City 
of University City, Missouri Property Assessed Clean Energy 
Ordinance.” 

 
2. Definitions. Except as specifically defined below, words and phrases 

used in this Ordinance shall have their customary meanings. Words 
and phrases defined in Section 67.2800.2 of the Missouri Revised 
Statutes, as amended, shall have their defined meanings when used in 
this Ordinance. As used in this Ordinance, the following words and 
phrases shall have the meanings indicated. 

 
a. “Show Me PACE” means the Show Me PACE District. 

 
b. “MCED” means the Missouri Clean Energy District. 
c. “Districts” means both the Show Me PACE and Missouri Clean 

Energy District. 
 

d. “PACE Assessment” means a special assessment made against 
qualifying property in consideration of PACE Funding. 

 
e. “PACE Funding” means funds provided to the owner(s) of 

Qualifying Property by the District for an energy efficiency or 
renewable energy improvement. 

 
f. “Qualifying Property” means real property located in the City of 

University City, Missouri that satisfies the criteria set forth in the 
PACE Act. 

 
B. Program Administration.  University City Property owners may 

independently select either Show Me PACE or MCED to serve as program 
administrator on a project by project basis. Both Districts shall each 
independently administer the functions of a PACE program for their projects 
within the City by: 

 
1. providing property owners with an application to apply for PACE 

Funding; 
 

2. developing standards for the approval of projects submitted by 
Qualifying Property owners; 

 
3. reviewing applications and selecting qualified projects; 

 
4. entering into Assessment Contracts with Qualifying Property owners; 

September 24, 2015 L-1-4



5. providing a copy of each executed Notice of Assessment to the County 
Assessor and causing a copy of each such Notice of Assessment to be 
recorded in the real estate records of the Recorder of Deeds for St. 
Louis County; 

 
6. authorizing and disbursing PACE Funding to the Qualifying Property 

owners; 
 

7. receiving the PACE Assessment from the St. Louis County Collector; 
 

8. recording any lien, if needed, due to nonpayment of a PACE 
Assessment; and 

 
9. exercising all powers granted by Section 67.2810.2 of the Missouri 

Revised Statutes, as amended, including, but not limited to, the power 
to levy and collect the PACE Assessment pursuant to an Assessment 
Contract with a Qualifying Property owner. 

 
C. Liability  of  City  Officials;  Liability  of  City. Notwithstanding any other 

provision of law to the contrary, officers and other officials of the City of 
University City, Missouri and St. Louis County, Missouri shall not be 
personally liable to any person for claims, of whatever kind or nature, under 
or related to the City’s participation in the PACE program, including, without 
limitation, claims for or related to uncollected PACE Assessments. The City 
of University City, Missouri has no liability to a property owner for or related 
to energy savings improvements funded under a PACE Program. The District 
shall for all purposes be considered an independent entity and shall not be 
considered a political subdivision of the City of University City, Missouri. 

 
D. Existing  Laws  Not  Superseded. Any project or improvement at any 

Qualifying Property which is funded in whole or in part by PACE Funding 
shall be subject to all ordinances, rules and regulations in effect at that time. 

 
E. City as a Non-Party. The City of University City, Missouri shall not be a 

party to any PACE Funding agreement, loan, or other commitment, however 
denominated, executed between the District and the owner(s) (or their 
representatives, together with any successors and assigns) of any Qualifying 
Property. 

 
SECTION 2: The City of University City, Missouri declares its intent that the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall be in conformity with federal and state laws. The City 
enacts this Ordinance pursuant to Sections 67.2800 to 67.2835 of the Missouri Revised 
Statutes, as amended. 

September 24, 2015 L-1-5



SECTION 3: The City of University City, Missouri does hereby request that it be 
approved by the Board of Directors of Show Me PACE and by the Board of Directors of 
MCED as a duly authorized participant in the District. 

 
SECTION 4: The election of the City of University City, Missouri to join the Districts 
shall in no way constitute an obligation of the City necessitating any corresponding 
appropriation. 

 
SECTION 5: The City Clerk is hereby authorized to deliver a duly executed copy of this 
Ordinance to the Board of Directors of each of the Districts or its designee, together with 
the jurisdictional and geographic boundaries of the City for inclusion in the jurisdictional 
and geographic boundaries of the Districts. 

 
SECTION 6: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval. 

 
 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS DAY OF , 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAYOR 
 

Attest: 
 
 
CITY CLERK 

September 24, 2015 L-1-6



   City Council Agenda Item Cover 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2015 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 610, ARTICLE I, 

CANVASSERS, SOLICITORS AND PEDDLERS, OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, TO ADD NEW SECTIONS 
GOVERNING STREET PERFORMERS AS PROVIDED HEREIN. 

 
AGENDA SECTION:  New Business 
 
COUNCIL ACTION:  Adoption of Ordinance  
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?: Yes 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:  The City does not have an ordinance that explicitly defines “Street 
Performers” or govern activities related thereto.  There are many individuals or groups that perform in 
University City’s public area for entertainment, particularly in The Loop.  Street performers have a 
constitutional right to perform on public property; however, unregulated street performances may cause 
adverse impacts to a community such as blocking sidewalks and building entries by either the 
performer or crowd gathered to observe; interference with the operation of adjacent commercial 
activities; and disturbance of the quiet enjoyment of residents and visitors.  The City receives numerous 
complaints from business owners and others regarding street performers, and was encouraged by the 
Loop Special Business District (LSBD) to consider regulating these activities.   
 
It is the intent of this ordinance revision to permit street performances in limited areas subject to careful 
regulations that will help reduce or eliminate adverse impacts.  A license will be required to allow street 
performers to perform in public spaces.  This enforcement mechanism will better ensure harmony 
among street performers, local businesses, residents and visitors.   

The ordinance revision has been reviewed by the City Attorney. It has also been reviewed and 
endorsed by the LSBD.   

The first reading should take place on September 8, 2015.  The second and third readings and passage 
of the ordinance could occur at a subsequent meeting. 
 
Attachments: 
1: Ordinance 
 
RECOMMENDATION:     Approval 

September 24, 2015 L-2-1



Chapter 610. Canvassers, Solicitors, Peddlers, and Street Performers  

Article I. Generally  

Section 610.010. Definitions.  

As used in this Chapter, the following words have the meaning indicated: 
 
CANVASSER 

A person who attempts to make personal contact with a resident at his/her residence, 
without prior specific invitation or appointment from the resident, for the primary purpose 
of: 

1.  Attempting to enlist support for or against a particular religion, philosophy, ideology, 
political party, issue or candidate, even if incidental to such purpose the canvasser 
accepts the donation of money for or against such cause; or 

2.  Distributing a handbill or flyer advertising a non-commercial event or service. 

PEDDLER 
A person who attempts to make personal contact with a resident at his/her residence, 
without prior specific invitation or appointment from the resident, for the primary 
purpose of attempting to sell a good or service. A "peddler" does not include a 
"solicitor". 
 

SOLICITOR 
A person who attempts to make personal contact with a resident at his/her residence, 
without prior specific invitation or appointment from the resident, for the primary 
purpose of: 

1. Attempting to obtain a donation to a particular patriotic, philanthropic, social service, 
welfare, benevolent, educational, civic, fraternal, charitable, political or religious 
purpose, even if incidental to such purpose there is the sale of some good or service; or 

2. Distributing a handbill or flyer advertising a commercial event, activity, good or service 
that is offered to the resident for purchase at a location away from the residence or at a 
time different from the time of visit. 

STREET PERFORMER 

An individual or group who performs in a public area to provide public entertainment. 

PERFORM 

Includes, but is not limited to, the following activities: playing music, singing, dancing, 
pantomiming, puppeteering, juggling, reciting, etc.  Perform does not include the 
provision of personal services or the production of items for sale.   

 

September 24, 2015 L-2-2

http://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28296803,28296811,28296812,28296813,28296819,28296820,28296839,28296850,28296851,28296866,28296867,28296868,28296869%2328296801
http://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28296803,28296811,28296812,28296813,28296819,28296820,28296839,28296850,28296851,28296866,28296867,28296868,28296869%2328296802
http://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28296803,28296811,28296812,28296813,28296819,28296820,28296839,28296850,28296851,28296866,28296867,28296868,28296869%2328296803
http://ecode360.com/print/28296804%2328296804
http://ecode360.com/print/28296805%2328296805
http://ecode360.com/print/28296806%2328296806
http://ecode360.com/print/28296807%2328296807
http://ecode360.com/print/28296808%2328296808
http://ecode360.com/print/28296809%2328296809
http://ecode360.com/print/28296810%2328296810


PUBLIC AREA 

Includes, but is not limited to, any public sidewalk, alley, park, parking lot or other public 
lands in the City.  It does not include public property in residential areas.   

 

Section 610.020. Exceptions.  

This Chapter shall not apply to a Federal, State or local government employee or a public utility 
employee in the performance of his/her duty for his/her employer. 

Section 610.030. License Required – Solicitor and Canvasser.  

It is unlawful for any person to carry on the business of solicitor or canvasser within the limits of 
the City without obtaining a license therefor. 
 
Section 610.030.1. Permit Required – Street Performer. 
  
It is unlawful for any person to carry on the business of a street performer within the limits of the 
City without obtaining a permit from the Department of Community Development therefor.  
 
A. The permit shall be valid for thirty days from the date on which it is issued. 
B. The permit shall contain the name of the applicant, physical address, telephone number, 

and type of performance. 
C. The permit shall be numbered and contain the month in which it was issued and the date 

it expires on the front of the permit.  
D. The permit shall be carried and displayed by a street performer at all times while 

performing in a public area. 
E. The permit is nontransferable. 

Section 610.040. Fees.  

A.  Canvassers And Solicitors.  
 

There shall be levied and collected from every person, firm or corporation carrying on the 
business of solicitor or canvasser, as herein defined, an annual fee of six dollars ($6.00); 
there shall be levied and collected from every corporation, partnership or association 
carrying on said business an annual license fee of thirty dollars ($30.00). Every such 
license shall show the place of residence of such solicitor or canvasser and shall be 
carried and exhibited whenever required by any police or other officer authorized to 
make arrests. In the event there is more than one (1) representative of a person, 
corporation, partnership or association carrying on the business herein defined, then there 
shall be levied and collected from each such representative an annual license fee of six 
dollars ($6.00), for which a license shall be issued. 

 

September 24, 2015 L-2-3

http://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28296803,28296811,28296812,28296813,28296819,28296820,28296839,28296850,28296851,28296866,28296867,28296868,28296869%2328296811
http://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28296803,28296811,28296812,28296813,28296819,28296820,28296839,28296850,28296851,28296866,28296867,28296868,28296869%2328296812
http://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28296803,28296811,28296812,28296813,28296819,28296820,28296839,28296850,28296851,28296866,28296867,28296868,28296869%2328296813
http://ecode360.com/print/28296814%2328296814


B.  Peddlers And Hawkers. 
 

1.  The fee for a license issued under this Chapter shall be thirty dollars ($30.00). The 
license shall be issued for a period not to exceed forty-eight (48) hours. 

 
2.  Every license shall show the place of residence of the peddler or hawker, and 

he/she shall carry the license with him/her and exhibit the same upon the request 
of any Police Officer. 

3.  In the event there is more than one (1) representative of a person carrying on the 
business of a peddler or hawker, there shall be an additional fee of six dollars 
($6.00), for which a license shall be issued for the same period. 

 
C. Street Performer 
 

There shall be levied and collected from every person, firm or corporation carrying on the 
business of street performer, as herein defined, a  fee of fifteen dollars ($15.00) per 
license. Every such license shall show the place of residence of such street performer and 
shall be carried and exhibited at all times.  In the event there is more than one (1) 
representative of a person, corporation, partnership or association carrying on the 
business herein defined, then there shall be levied and collected from each such 
representative an  license fee of two dollars ($2.00), for which a license shall be issued. 

 

Section 610.050. Distribution of Dangerous Products Prohibited — Exceptions.  

It is unlawful for any person, as defined in Section 100.080 of the University City Municipal 
Code, to distribute door-to-door, on a sample basis, or other similar method of dissemination, 
any inherently dangerous product, including, but not limited to, razor blades or deodorants, or 
any product which on its package contains a warning or other caution against internal or external 
use, with or without antidote instructions or precautions as to such use; provided however, that 
such product may be handed to an adult member of the household or dwelling unit where such 
product is distributed, or such products may be distributed without being handed to an adult 
member of any dwelling unit if said product is packaged in a child-proof package which is 
proven to have a child-resistant effectiveness of percentages specified as safe in the testing 
procedure for special packaging under Testing Regulation No. 16 CFR 1700.20 of the Poison 
Prevention Packaging Act of 1970. 

Section 610.060. License Requirements.  

A.  It is unlawful for any person to carry on the business of a peddler or hawker in the City 
unless the person has a license issued therefor by the City Manager or the City Manager's 
designee. 

B.  No license to carry on such business shall be issued unless: 
 
1.  The applicant is a charitable or religious organization exempt from taxation under 

Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code; 

September 24, 2015 L-2-4

http://ecode360.com/print/28296815%2328296815
http://ecode360.com/print/28296816%2328296816
http://ecode360.com/print/28296817%2328296817
http://ecode360.com/print/28296818%2328296818
http://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28296803,28296811,28296812,28296813,28296819,28296820,28296839,28296850,28296851,28296866,28296867,28296868,28296869%2328296819
http://ecode360.com/print/28301793%2328301793
http://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28296803,28296811,28296812,28296813,28296819,28296820,28296839,28296850,28296851,28296866,28296867,28296868,28296869%2328296820
http://ecode360.com/print/28296821%2328296821
http://ecode360.com/print/28296822%2328296822
http://ecode360.com/print/28296823%2328296823


 
2.  The application includes the following: 

 
a. The name, address and telephone number of the applicant, 

 
b. Proof of the applicant's tax exempt status, 
 
c. A list or description of the items which will be sold or offered for sale, 

 
d. A sketch drawing of the location where the items will be sold or offered for 

sale indicating the proposed arrangement on said property, 
 

e. The date and time when the items will be sold or offered for sale, 
 

f. Proof of the applicant's right to be on the premises where the items will be sold 
or offered for sale, 

 
g. Any other information deemed relevant by the City Manager or the City 

Manager's designee; 
 

3.  The required license fee is paid; 
 

4.  The items will be sold or offered for sale by the applicant upon premises lawfully 
occupied by a business licensee under this Title; and such items can be lawfully 
sold on the premises by the business licensee; and the items will be sold or 
offered for sale only during the hours the business is open to the public for 
business; 

 
5.  During the preceding twelve (12) months the applicant has not been permitted to 

carry on the business of a peddler or hawker more than four (4) times under a 
different license issued for each time; 

 
6. No person has been issued a license to carry on the business of a peddler or 

hawker upon the same premises of the business licensee within thirty (30) days of 
the date the items will be sold or offered for sale by the applicant; 

 
7.  The applicant will not obstruct or otherwise interfere with vehicular or pedestrian 

traffic on the premises where the items will be sold or offered for sale; and 
 

8.  The applicant will provide adequate refuse containers on the premises where the 
items will be sold or offered for sale. 

 
C.  The City Manager or the City Manager's designee may impose license conditions 

consistent with this Section, and the applicant and any agent, employee, member, officer 
or representative thereof shall comply with the same. 

September 24, 2015 L-2-5

http://ecode360.com/print/28296824%2328296824
http://ecode360.com/print/28296825%2328296825
http://ecode360.com/print/28296826%2328296826
http://ecode360.com/print/28296827%2328296827
http://ecode360.com/print/28296828%2328296828
http://ecode360.com/print/28296829%2328296829
http://ecode360.com/print/28296830%2328296830
http://ecode360.com/print/28296831%2328296831
http://ecode360.com/print/28296832%2328296832
http://ecode360.com/print/28296833%2328296833
http://ecode360.com/print/28296834%2328296834
http://ecode360.com/print/28296835%2328296835
http://ecode360.com/print/28296836%2328296836
http://ecode360.com/print/28296837%2328296837
http://ecode360.com/print/28296838%2328296838


 

Section 610.070. Solicitor and Canvasser Prohibitions.  

A.  It shall be unlawful for any peddler, solicitor or canvasser to: 
 

1.  Leave or attach any handbill or flyer at or to any sign, utility pole, transit shelter 
or other structure within the public right-of-way. The City's Police are authorized 
to remove any handbill or flyer found within the right-of-way; 

 
2.  Leave or attach any handbill or flyer at or to any privately owned property in a 

manner that causes damage to such privately owned property; 
 
3.  Enter upon any private property where the property has clearly posted in the front 

yard a sign visible from the right-of-way (public or private) indicating a 
prohibition against peddling, soliciting and/or canvassing. Such sign need not 
exceed one (1) square foot in size and may contain words such as "no soliciting" 
or "no solicitors", or similar language, in letters of at least two (2) inches in 
height. (The phrase "no soliciting" or "no solicitors" shall also prohibit peddlers 
and canvassers); 

 
4.  Remain upon any private property where a notice in the form of a sign or sticker 

is placed upon any door or entrance way leading into the residence or dwelling at 
which guests would normally enter, which sign contains the words "no soliciting" 
or "no solicitors" or similar language and which is clearly visible to the peddler, 
solicitor or canvasser; 

 
5.  Enter or remain upon any private property after having been orally requested or 

directed by the owner or occupant thereof to leave the premises; 
 

6.  Use or attempt to use any entrance other than the front or main entrance to the 
dwelling or step from the sidewalk or indicated walkway (where one exists) 
leading from the right-of-way to the front or main entrance, except by express 
invitation of the resident or occupant of the property; 

 
7.  Remove any yard, door or entrance sign that gives notice to such person that the 

owner or occupant of the private property does not invite peddlers, solicitors or 
canvassers; or 

 
8.  For those persons who do not wish to restrict access by sign, solicitation shall be 

permitted as follows: During the fall and winter months of November, December, 
January, February and March, the restrictions against solicitation will begin at 
7:00 P.M. During the spring, summer and fall months of April, May, June, July, 
August, September and October, the restrictions against solicitation will begin at 
8:30 P.M. 

September 24, 2015 L-2-6

http://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28296803,28296811,28296812,28296813,28296819,28296820,28296839,28296850,28296851,28296866,28296867,28296868,28296869%2328296839
http://ecode360.com/print/28296840%2328296840
http://ecode360.com/print/28296841%2328296841
http://ecode360.com/print/28296842%2328296842
http://ecode360.com/print/28296843%2328296843
http://ecode360.com/print/28296844%2328296844
http://ecode360.com/print/28296845%2328296845
http://ecode360.com/print/28296846%2328296846
http://ecode360.com/print/28296847%2328296847
http://ecode360.com/print/28296848%2328296848


The above prohibitions shall not apply when the peddler, solicitor or 
canvasser has an express invitation from the owner or occupant of the 
private property to enter and remain on said property.  

 

Section 610.080.1. Street Performer Prohibitions  

A. No street performer may perform:  
 
1. Within ten (10) feet of any bus or trolley stop;  

 
2. Within ten (10) feet of any street corner or marked pedestrian crosswalk; 
 
3. Within ten (10) feet of any entrance to a business or residence, unless so permitted by 

the business or property owner.    
 

B. A street performer and the performer’s equipment may not block or obstruct the free and 
safe movement of pedestrians.  If a sufficient crowd gathers to observe a performer such 
that passage of the public through a public area is blocked or obstructed, a Police Officer 
or Fire Official may disperse that portion of the crowd that is blocking or obstructing the 
passage of the public.  If a performer cannot conduct a performance in a location without 
blocking or obstructing the passage of the public, a Police Officer or Fire Official may 
cause the performer to leave the location or require that the performer relocate his or her 
equipment, but shall not prevent the performer from occupying another location in 
compliance with this Chapter.  
 

C. No performer shall utilize or prevent the public from utilizing any public benches, waste 
receptacles or other street furniture during the performance.  
 

D. No performer shall block or obstruct curb cuts.  
 

E. No performer shall perform in contravention to the allowable noise levels established by 
City Code Section 215.780 and 400.1440. 
 

F. No performer shall place any object on a public sidewalk which causes less than a four-
foot contiguous sidewalk width being kept clear for pedestrian passage.  
 

G. No minor under the age of seventeen (17) can perform unless the minor is at all times 
accompanied by a responsible adult eighteen (18) years of age or older. 
 

H. A performer shall not leave his or her instruments, props, equipment or other items 
unattended at any time on a public sidewalk, public street or public right-of-way.  

September 24, 2015 L-2-7



 
I. No performer or group of performers may perform less than fifty (50) feet from another 

performer or group of performers. 
 

J. No performer may request contributions or money or property at a performance.  Money 
given for a performance shall be on a donation only basis.  A performer shall perform 
whether or not the performer receives compensation for the performance.  A performer 
may not charge a set fee for the performance or use aggressive measures to solicit 
donations.    
 

K. No performer shall perform outside of the following permitted timeframes, unless 
otherwise permitted in conjunction with a special request: 

a. Sundays – Thursdays between 10:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. 
b. Fridays and Saturdays between 10:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. 

Section 610.080.2. Revocation of Street Performer Permit. 
 
A. The City may revoke or suspend a permit issued under the terms of this Chapter if the 

permit holder violates any provision of this Chapter or any permit regulation.   
 

a. The Director of Community Development may suspend a permit for not more 
than fifteen (15) days if any information contained in the application thereof is 
found to be false. 
 

b. The Director may suspend a permit for not more than thirty (30) days or 
revoke a permit if a performer violates any of the provisions of this Chapter. 

 
c. After revocation of a permit, the former performer may not obtain a new 

permit until such date as the Director may determine, provided that such date 
shall not be more than one year after the date of revocation. 

 
 

d. Permits shall be returned to the Director upon revocation or expiration. 
 

Section 610.080.3. Street Performer Permit Violations. 
  
Any street performer who violates the provisions of this Chapter, or who knowingly furnishes 
false information on the permit application, shall be subject to a fine of not less than $50.00 nor 
more than $500.00.   
 

 

September 24, 2015 L-2-8



INTRODUCED BY:      DATE:   September 8, 2015 
 
BILL NO.     9272      ORDINANCE NO.___________ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 610, ARTICLE I, 
CANVASSERS, SOLICITORS AND PEDDLERS, OF THE 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, TO ADD 
NEW SECTIONS GOVERNING STREET PERFORMERS 
AS PROVIDED HEREIN. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 
Section 1. Article I of Chapter 610 – Canvassers, Solicitors and Peddlers, of the 
University City Municipal Code is amended as provided herein. Language to be added 
to the Code is emphasized. This Ordinance contemplates no revisions to the Code 
other than those so designated; any language or provisions from the Code omitted from 
this Ordinance is represented by an ellipsis and remains in full force and effect.  
 
Section 2. Chapter 610, Article I of the University City Municipal Code is hereby 
amended to add new sections governing Street Performers within the City limits; such 
amendments to the Code are set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference.  

 
* * * 

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or 
corporation from any penalty heretofore incurred by the violation of the sections revised 
by this amendment nor bar the prosecution for any such violation. 
 
Section 4. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be punished in accordance with the provisions of the University City 
Municipal Code. 
 
Section 5.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 
as provided by law. 
 
      
 
 

PASSED THIS________day of____________2015 
 
 
 

___________________________________  
    MAYOR 

 

September 24, 2015 L-2-9



 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
 CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 

September 24, 2015 L-2-10



                 
 
                                   
 
                           Council Agenda Item Cover 

________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                            
 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2015                                         
 
AGENDA SECTION:   New Business 
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Proposed Ordinance Amending Provisions of the City of 

University City’s Municipal Code to Comply with Missouri 
Senate Bill No. 5 

 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:   Senate Bill 5 (SB5) was enacted and signed into law as a 
municipal court reform measure.  This bill further limits municipal revenue from traffic 
fines, mandates new municipal court procedures and strict financial reporting 
requirements.  Municipalities are prohibited from receiving more than 20 percent (20%) 
of their general operating funds from minor traffic violations.  For municipalities in St. 
Louis County, the threshold is 12.5 percent (12.5%) of the general revenue.  Excess 
revenue must be sent to the Missouri Department of Revenue.  Municipalities in St. 
Louis County are subject to a state-mandated disincorporation referendum if they do not 
meet the twelve operating standards within three years. 
 
University City currently meets many of the requirements of this bill.  However, the 
legislation does require that the City make some administrative changes.  These 
changes are contained in this ordinance.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Municipal Judge recommends amending the attached 
ordinance. 

September 24, 2015 L-3-1



 

INTRODUCED BY:  DATE:   September 8, 2015 
 

BILL NO.  9273 ORDINANCE NO. ______   
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO COMPLY WITH MISSOURI SENATE BILL NO. 5 (SB5) 
RELATING TO PENALTIES, COURT PROCEDURES, AND SPEEDING 
VIOLATIONS. 

 
 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill No. 5, effective August 28, 2015, was enacted and signed into 
law as a municipal court reform measure, and it requires certain changes to the University City 
Municipal Code, specifically relating to the charge of failure to appear, the definition of "minor 
traffic violation", and the City's general penalty provision ; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to implement these  changes  to correspond with the 

effective date of Senate Bill No. 5; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISOURI AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section One 

 
Section 300.010 of the Municipal Code of the City of University City, Missouri is 

hereby amended by enacting a new definition of "minor traffic violation", to read as follows: 
 

TITLE III TRAFFIC CODE 
 

Chapter 300 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

Section 300.010 Definitions 
 

MINOR TRAFFIC VIOLATION-Any violation of a municipal ordinance: (a) for which the 
Missouri Department of Revenue is authorized to assess no more than four points to a person's 
driving record upon conviction and (b) that does not involve (i) an accident or injury,(ii) the 
operation of a commercial vehicle, (iii) exceeding a speed limit by more than 19 miles an hour, or 
(iv) a violation occurring within a construction zone or a school zone. 

 
Section Two 

 
Subsection 100.180.A of the Municipal Code of the City of University City, Missouri 

relating to the City's general penalty for ordinance violations is hereby amended by enacting a 
new paragraph on minor traffic violations, to read as follows: 

 
TITLE I GOVERNMENT  CODE 

 
Chapter 100 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

September 24, 2015 L-3-2



 

 
Section 100.190 General Penalty 

D.     Minor Traffic Violations. The punishment of a "minor traffic violation", as 
defined by Section 300.010 of the University City Municipal Code, shall be subject to 
the following: 

 
1. The maximum fine and court costs that can be imposed for the violation of 

any minor traffic violation shall be $300.00. 
 

2. Minor traffic violations shall not be punishable by imprisonment, unless the 
violation (i) involved alcohol or co11trolled substances, (ii) endangered the 
health or welfare of others, or (iii) involved eluding or giving false 
information to a law enforcement officer. 

 
3. A person convicted of a minor traffic violation shall not be placed in 

confinement for failure to pay a fine unless such nonpayment violates the 
terms of the person's probation. 

 
4. Court costs shall be assessed against such person unless the court finds that the 

defendant is indigent. 
 

Section Three 
 
Section 215.325 of the Municipal Code of the City of University City, Missouri relating to 
the charge of failure to appear is hereby amended by enacting a new Subsection 215.325. C, 
to read as follows: 
 
TITLE I GOVERNMENT  CODE 

 
Chapter 215 OFFENSES 

 
Section 215.325 Failure to Appear 
 
C.  This section shall not apply to any “minor traffic violation”, as defined by Section 
300.010 of the University City Municipal Code. 
 
Section Four 

 
This .Ordinance shall be effective on October 12, 2015 after its passage and adoption. 

 
 

PASSED THIS________day of____________2015 
 

 
________________________________   

  MAYOR 
 
 

September 24, 2015 L-3-3



 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
CITY CLERK 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
 

 
 
 
 

September 24, 2015 L-3-4



SUBMITTED BY COUNCILMEMBERS CROW AND CARR

September 24, 2015 L-4-1



INTRODUCED BY: DATE:  September 8, 2015 

BILL NO.     9274 ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 140 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, 
RELATING TO MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS, BY ENACTING 
THEREIN A NEW SECTION TO BE KNOWN AS “SECTION 140.025 AMBULANCE 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICE CONTRACTS.” 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Chapter 140 of the University City Municipal Code, relating to miscellaneous 
administrative provisions, is hereby amended by enacting therein a new section to be known as 
“Section 140.025 Ambulance Transportation Service Contracts,” which shall read as follows: 

A. Any provider of emergency ambulance transportation services operating under a contract 
with the City of University City shall provide proof of all certifications and licenses, as required 
by applicable law, to the City of University City on a semi-annual basis.  All certifications and 
licenses shall be maintained by the City Clerk. 

B.  Any provider of emergency ambulance transportation services operating under a contract 
with the City of University City shall provide proof of comprehensive automobile insurance, 
comprehensive general liability insurance, and professional liability insurance in the face 
amount of $1 million per person and $2 million per occurrence, and workers’ compensation 
insurance at or above the statutory required amounts to the City of University City on a semi-
annual basis.  All required insurance information shall be maintained by the City Clerk. 

C.  Any provider of emergency ambulance transportation services operating under a contract 
with the City of University City shall provide proof of its compliance with the Fair Debt Collection 
Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. Section 1601 e. seq., as amended, any Missouri Consumer Protection 
laws, as amended, the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. Sections 101, et seq, as amended, and the 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 42 U.S.C. Sections 1320d through 
d-8, as amended, by letter to the City of University City on a semi-annual-basis.  All required 
compliance documentation referenced in this section shall be maintained by the City Clerk.   

D.  Any provider of emergency ambulance transportation services operating under a contract 
with the City of University City shall notify the City of University City 90 days prior to adjusting 
any rates and charges for their services offered within the City Limits of University City. 

E.   The City Manager of the City of University City shall develop, maintain and update an 
emergency ambulance transportation service re-implementation plan that ensures sufficient 
emergency ambulance transportation service is available immediately following termination of 
an ambulance transportation service contract. 

September 24, 2015 L-4-2



F.  Any provider of emergency ambulance transportation services operating under a contract 
with the City of University City shall staff their ambulances with two emergency medical 
technician – paramedics. 

G. The City of University City shall maintain all emergency ambulance service mutual aid 
agreements. 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law.  

PASSED THIS _____ DAY OF _____,2015 

____________________________ 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_____________________ 

CITY CLERK 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

_____________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY 

September 24, 2015 L-4-3



  Council Agenda Item Cover 

_______________________________________________________________________  

MEETING DATE: September 24, 2015         

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Resolution Approving Annual Property Tax Rates 

AGENDA SECTION:  New Business 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    No 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    Each year the City must approve property tax levies which are 
then submitted to St. Louis County for billing.  Calendar year 2015 is a re-assessment year.  
The City’s properties assessed value has increased over $20 million or 4% from the last 
assessment.  This increase resulted in decreasing the commercial rate from $0.731 to 
$0.701 and residential rate from $0.753 to $0.734.  In addition, General Obligation Bonds 
Series 2005 was paid off in March 2015.  There is no longer a levy for debt service. This 
also resulted in decreasing the Personal Property Tax rate from $0.879 to $0.875.  The City is 
allowed to receive additional revenue up to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) which was 
0.8% for this year, and for the value of new construction. 

Public Hearing will be held on Monday and Thursday, September 21 and 24, 2015, at 6:30pm 
in the Council Chamber on the 5th floor on both days.   

The City has received the final assessed valuations from St. Louis County on September 11, 
2015 after the Board of Equalization completed the assessment appeal process.  The 
rates have been calculated and approved by the Missouri State Auditor’s Office which are 
reflected in the information below, on the attached schedules and the resolution. These 
finalized rates are due to St. Louis County by October 1st. 

Proposed Rates 

2015 Total Residential Property Tax Levy   $0.734 

2014 Total Residential Property Tax Levy   $0.753 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the final rates as presented. 

September 24, 2015 M-1-1



City of University City 
Residential Property Tax Rate History 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

City - General Revenue 0.513 0.541 0.557 0.561 0.561 0.561 0.579 0.568 

City - Pension 0.144 0.152 0.156 0.158 0.158 0.158 0.170 0.166 

City - Debt 0.042 0.056 0.048 0.034 0.034 0.034 0.004 0.000 

Total City Rate 0.699 0.749 0.761 0.753 0.753 0.753 0.753 0.734 

City of University City  
Property Tax Rate History 

 ----------------------2015------------------------ 
2012 2013 2014 

Residential Commercial Personal 
City - General Revenue 

Residential 0.561 0.561 0.579 0.568 
Commercial 0.578 0.578 0.567 0.552 
Personal 0.680 0.680 0.680 0.680 

City - Pension (Police & Fire) 
Residential 0.158 0.158 0.170 0.166 
Commercial 0.190 0.190 0.160 0.149 
Personal 0.195 0.195 0.195 0.195 

City - Debt 
Residential 0.034 0.034 0.004 0.000 
Commercial 0.034 0.034 0.004 0.000 
Personal 0.034 0.034 0.004 0.000 

TOTAL CITY RATE 0.734 0.701 0.875 

Library 
Residential 0.241 0.266 0.266 0.259 
Commercial 0.280 0.254 0.251 0.238 
Personal 0.280 0.280 0.280 0.280 

Loop Special Business Dist. 
Residential 0.590 0.565 0.565 0.586 
Commercial 0.536 0.530 0.530 0.498     -   

Parkview Gardens Special Dist. 
Residential 0.627 0.680 0.680 0.618 
Commercial 0.722 0.850 0.850 0.850     -   

September 24, 2015 M-1-2



RESOLUTION 2015 - 21 

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE LEVY AND FIXING THE RATE OF PROPERTY 
TAXES TO BE COLLECTED IN THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY FOR THE YEAR 
2015 TO PROVIDE FOR GENERAL REVENUE, POLICE AND FIREFIGHTER 
RETIREMENT PLAN, AND FOR THE UNIVERSITY CITY LOOP SPECIAL 
BUSINESS DISTRICT AND THE PARKVIEW GARDEN SPECIAL TAXING 
DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, RSMo. 67.110. requires political subdivisions such as the City of University City to 
fix its ad valorem property tax rates not later than October first for entry in the tax books; and  

WHEREAS, the City of University City received the finalized assessed property valuations 
from St. Louis County on September 11, 2015 and subsequently calculated the proposed tax rates; 
and  

WHEREAS, the City of University City conducted a Public Hearing on the proposed tax rates 
on September 21 and 24, 2015 after due and proper notification in the St. Louis Countian (Missouri 
Lawyers Media), a newspaper of general circulation.   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. There is hereby levied for the year 2015 upon all real and personal property, subject 
to taxation, in the City of University City, Missouri, the following taxes for the following purposes, to 
wit: 

A. For general revenue purposes a tax of $0.568 on residential property, a tax of $0.552 
on commercial property and a tax of $0.680 on personal property, on each one 
hundred dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation. 

B. For Police and Firefighter Retirement purposes a tax of $0.166 on residential property, 
a tax of $0.149 on commercial property and a tax of $0.195 on personal property, on 
each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation. 

Section 2. There is hereby levied for the year 2015 upon all real property, subject to taxation, 
in the University City Loop Special Business District, an additional tax of said district of $0.586 for 
residential property and $0.498 for commercial property, on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of 
assessed valuation. 

Section 3. There is hereby levied for the year 2015 upon all real property, subject to taxation, 
in the Parkview Gardens Special Taxing District, an additional tax of $0.618 for residential property 
and $0.850 for commercial property, on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation. 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

PASSED this _______ day of September, 2015. 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
City Clerk   September 24, 2015 M-1-3



City of University City 
Public Hearing Notice 

The Council of the City of University City will hold a public hearing at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, September 
21, 2015 at City Hall, 6801 Delmar Boulevard, 5th Floor, on proposed property tax rates.   The tax rates 
shall be set to produce substantively the revenue required to be provided from property tax as set forth 
in the annual adopted budget.  This levy is subject to change pending action of the City Council. 

The library will hold a separate public hearing at 5:15 p.m. on Monday, September 21, 2015, at Library, 
6701 Delmar Boulevard, in the Boardroom. 

Assessed Valuation   Current 
  Tax Year 

  Prior 
  Tax Year 

City of University City 
  Residential $467,060,200 $449,640,570 
  Commercial $62,127,167 $59,107,622 
  Personal Property   $62,139,977 $61,133679 

University City Loop Special Business District 
  Residential   $1,052,090 $1,090,590 
  Commercial   $7,758,760 $6,950,890 

Parkview Gardens Special Business District 
  Residential   $12,793,200 $11,318,360 
  Commercial     $1,828,480 $1,883,380 

       Proposed Tax Rates   Proposed 
Revenue 

  2015-2016 
Residential Commercial Personal 

City – General Revenue $0.560 $0.558 $0.680   $ 3,418,400 
City – Pension $0.165 $0.151 $0.195   $ 989,100 
Library $0.259 $0.238 $0.280  $ 1,531,500 
University City Loop District $0.543 $0.485 $0.000   $ 44,800 
Parkview Gardens District $0.592 $0.850 $0.000   $ 94,600 

If you are a person with a disability or have special needs in order to participate in this public hearing, 
please contact Joyce Pumm at (314) 505-8605 prior to the hearing. 

BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 
Joyce Pumm, City Clerk 
September 15, 2015 

September 24, 2015 M-1-4



City of University City 
Public Hearing Notice 

The Council of the City of University City will hold a public hearing at 6:30 p.m. on Thursday, 
September 24, 2015 at City Hall, 6801 Delmar Boulevard, 5th Floor, on proposed property tax rates.   
The tax rates shall be set to produce substantively the revenue required to be provided from property 
tax as set forth in the annual adopted budget.  This levy is subject to change pending action of the City 
Council. 
The library will hold a separate public hearing at 5:15 p.m. on Monday, September 21, 2015, at Library, 
6701 Delmar Boulevard, in the Boardroom. 

Assessed Valuation   Current 
  Tax Year 

  Prior 
  Tax Year 

City of University City 
  Residential $467,060,200 $449,640,570 
  Commercial $62,127,167 $59,107,622 
  Personal Property   $62,139,977 $61,133679 

University City Loop Special Business District 
  Residential   $1,052,090 $1,090,590 
  Commercial   $7,758,760 $6,950,890 

Parkview Gardens Special Business District 
  Residential   $12,793,200 $11,318,360 
  Commercial     $1,828,480 $1,883,380 

       Proposed Tax Rates   Proposed 
Revenue 

  2015-2016 
Residential Commercial Personal 

City – General Revenue $0.560 $0.558 $0.680   $ 3,418,400 
City – Pension $0.165 $0.151 $0.195   $ 989,100 
Library $0.259 $0.238 $0.280  $ 1,531,500 
University City Loop District $0.543 $0.485 $0.000   $ 44,800 
Parkview Gardens District $0.592 $0.850 $0.000   $ 94,600 

If you are a person with a disability or have special needs in order to participate in this public hearing, 
please contact Joyce Pumm at (314) 505-8605 prior to the hearing. 

BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 
Joyce Pumm, City Clerk 
September 15, 2015 

September 24, 2015 M-1-5



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE: September 21, 2015 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Shared Lane Markings Project – Transportation Alternatives 
Program Agreement    

AGENDA SECTION:   New Business 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:    No 

BACKGROUND REVIEW: 

The City of University City applied for federal funds through the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission and administered by East West Gateway Council of 
Governments and the Missouri Department of Transportation, to install full-lane width 
enlarged shared lane markings along five different streets within University City, in 
accordance with the City of University City Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan.   

The Missouri Department of Transportation requires that the City execute the attached 
“Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission Program Agreement” between The 
Federal Highway Administration, Department of Transportation and the City of University 
City. 

The Grant amount is $159,780.00. Federal participation is 80% of the project cost, and 
City participation is 20% of the project cost, equivalent to $31,956.00.  The funding will be 
available for Federal fiscal year 2015 (October) through 2016. 

This cannot be rescheduled as the money has to be obligated before the end of August 
and City Council does not meet again until September. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

It is staff recommendation that the attached ordinance be approved by the City Council. 

Attachments: 

- Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission TAP- Program Agreement 
- City’s applicable enabling ordinance  

September 24, 2015 M-2-1



CCO Form: FS25 University City 
Approved: 04/95 (MGB) Shared Lane Markings 
Revised: 01/15 (MWH) 
Modified:  

CFDA Number: 
CFDA Title:          Highway Planning and Construction 
Award name/number:       TAP - 5402(614) 
Award Year:          (2015) 
Federal Agency:  Federal Highway Administration, Department of Transportation

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES FUNDS 

PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by the Missouri Highways and Transportation 
Commission (hereinafter, "Commission") and University City (hereinafter, “City”). 

 WITNESSETH: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 
representations in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 

(1) PURPOSE:  The United States Congress has authorized, in 23 U.S.C. 
MAP-21 §1122, §101, §106 and §213, SAFETEA-LU §1404 funds to be used for 
transportation alternatives activities.  The purpose of this Agreement is to grant the use 
of such transportation enhancement funds to the City.   

(2) LOCATION:  The transportation alternatives funds which are the subject of 
this Agreement are for the project at the following location:  Install full-lane width 
enlarged shared lane markings along five different streets within University City. 

Project Limits: 82nd Street from Olive Blvd. to Paramount Drive, Barbara Jordan School 
81st Street from Olive Blvd. to Groby Road, Brittany Woods Middle School 
Purdue Ave. from Olive Blvd. to Canton Ave. 
Jackson Ave. from Delmar Blvd. to University Drive 
Old Bonhomme Rd. from Centennial Greenway to 81st Street 

The general location of the project is shown on attachment marked "Exhibit A" 
and incorporated herein by reference. 

(3) REASONABLE PROGRESS POLICY: The project as described in this 
agreement is subject to the reasonable progress policy set forth in the Local Public 
Agency (LPA) Manual and the final deadline specified in Exhibit B attached hereto and 

September 24, 2015 M-2-2



incorporated herein by reference.  In the event, the LPA Manual and the final deadline 
within Exhibit B conflict, the final deadline within Exhibit B controls.  If the project is 
within a Transportation Management Area that has a reasonable progress policy in 
place, the project is subject to that policy.  If the project is withdrawn for not meeting 
reasonable progress, the City agrees to repay the Commission for any progress 
payments made to the City for the project and agrees that the Commission may deduct 
progress payments made to the City from future payments to the City.  The City may not 
be eligible for future Transportation Alternatives Funds if the City does not meet the 
reasonable progress policy. 

(4) INDEMNIFICATION: 

(A) To the extent allowed or imposed by law, the City shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the Commission, including its members and the Missouri 
Department of Transportation (MoDOT or Department) employees, from any claim or 
liability whether based on a claim for damages to real or personal property or to a 
person for any matter relating to or arising out of the City’s wrongful or negligent 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

(B) The City will require any contractor procured by the City to work 
under this Agreement: 

1. To obtain a no cost permit from the Commission’s district
engineer prior to working on the Commission’s right-of-way, which shall be signed by an 
authorized contractor representative (a permit from the Commission’s district engineer 
will not be required for work outside of the Commission’s right-of-way); and 

2. To carry commercial general liability insurance and
commercial automobile liability insurance from a company authorized to issue insurance 
in Missouri, and to name the Commission, and MoDOT and its employees, as additional 
named insureds in amounts sufficient to cover the sovereign immunity limits for Missouri 
public entities as calculated by the Missouri Department of Insurance, Financial 
Institutions and Professional Registration, and published annually in the Missouri 
Register pursuant to Section 537.610, RSMo. The City shall cause insurer to increase 
the insurance amounts in accordance with those published annually in the Missouri 
Register pursuant to Section 537.610, RSMo. 

(C) In no event shall the language of this Agreement constitute or be 
construed as a waiver or limitation for either party’s rights or defenses with regard to 
each party’s applicable sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections 
as provided by federal and state constitution or law. 

(5) AMENDMENTS:  Any change in this Agreement, whether by modification 
or supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal contract amendment signed and 
approved by the duly authorized representatives of the City and the Commission. 

September 24, 2015 M-2-3



 
 (6) COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE:  The Commission's District Engineer 
is designated as the Commission's representative for the purpose of administering the 
provisions of this Agreement.  The Commission's representative may designate by 
written notice other persons having the authority to act on behalf of the Commission in 
furtherance of the performance of this Agreement. 
 
 (7) NONDISCRIMINATION ASSURANCE:  With regard to work under this 
Agreement, the City agrees as follows: 
 
  (A) Civil Rights Statutes:  The City shall comply with all state and 
federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination, including but not limited to Title VI and 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. §2000d and §2000e, et 
seq.), as well as any applicable titles of the "Americans with Disabilities Act" (42 U.S.C. 
§12101, et seq.).  In addition, if the City is providing services or operating programs on 
behalf of the Department or the Commission, it shall comply with all applicable 
provisions of Title II of the "Americans with Disabilities Act". 
 
  (B) Administrative Rules:  The City shall comply with the administrative 
rules of the United States Department of Transportation relative to nondiscrimination in 
federally-assisted programs of the United States Department of Transportation (49 
C.F.R. Part 21) which are herein incorporated by reference and made part of this 
Agreement. 
 
  (C) Nondiscrimination:  The City shall not discriminate on grounds of 
the race, color, religion, creed, sex, disability, national origin, age or ancestry of any 
individual in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of 
materials and leases of equipment.  The City shall not participate either directly or 
indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by 49 C.F.R. §21.5, including employment 
practices. 
 
  (D) Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Material 
and Equipment:  These assurances concerning nondiscrimination also apply to 
subcontractors and suppliers of the City.  These apply to all solicitations either by 
competitive bidding or negotiation made by the City for work to be performed under a 
subcontract including procurement of materials or equipment.  Each potential 
subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the City of the requirements of this 
Agreement relative to nondiscrimination on grounds of the race, color, religion, creed, 
sex, disability or national origin, age or ancestry of any individual. 
 
  (E) Information and Reports:  The City shall provide all information and 
reports required by this Agreement, or orders and instructions issued pursuant thereto, 
and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and 
its facilities as may be determined by the Commission or the United States Department 
of Transportation to be necessary to ascertain compliance with other contracts, orders 
and instructions.  Where any information required of the City is in the exclusive 

September 24, 2015 M-2-4



possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the City shall so 
certify to the Commission or the United States Department of Transportation as 
appropriate and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 
 
  (F) Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event the City fails to comply 
with the nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, the Commission shall impose 
such contract sanctions as it or the United States Department of Transportation may 
determine to be appropriate, including but not limited to: 
 
   1. Withholding of payments under this Agreement until the City 
complies; and/or 
 
   2. Cancellation, termination or suspension of this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, or both. 
 
  (G) Incorporation of Provisions:  The City shall include the provisions of 
paragraph (7) of this Agreement in every subcontract, including procurements of 
materials and leases of equipment, unless exempted by the statutes, executive order, 
administrative rules or instructions issued by the Commission or the United States 
Department of Transportation.  The City will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or procurement as the Commission or the United States Department of 
Transportation may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions 
for noncompliance; provided that in the event the City becomes involved or is 
threatened with litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, 
the City may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the 
interests of the United States. 
 
 (8) ASSIGNMENT:  The City shall not assign, transfer or delegate any 
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Commission. 
 
 (9) LAW OF MISSOURI TO GOVERN:  This Agreement shall be construed 
according to the laws of the State of Missouri.  The City shall comply with all local, state 
and federal laws and regulations relating to the performance of this Agreement. 
 
 (10) CANCELLATION:  The Commission may cancel this Agreement at any 
time for a material breach of contractual obligations by providing the City with written 
notice of cancellation.  Should the Commission exercise its right to cancel this 
Agreement for such reasons, cancellation will become effective upon the date specified 
in the notice of cancellation sent to the City. 
 
 (11) ACCESS TO RECORDS:  The City and its contractors must maintain all 
records relating to this Agreement, including but not limited to invoices, payrolls, etc.  
These records must be available at no charge to the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) and the Commission and/or their designees or representatives during the 
period of this Agreement and any extension, and for a period of three (3) years after the 
date on which the City receives reimbursement of their final invoice from the 

September 24, 2015 M-2-5



Commission. 
 
 (12) FEDERAL-AID PROVISIONS:  Because responsibility for the performance 
of all functions or work contemplated as part of this project is assumed by the City, and 
the City may elect to construct part of the improvement contemplated by this Agreement 
with its own forces, a copy of Section II and Section III, as contained in the United 
States Department of Transportation Form Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
1273 "Required Contract Provisions, Federal-Aid Construction Contracts," is attached 
and made a part of this Agreement as Exhibit C.  Wherever the term "the contractor" or 
words of similar import appear in these sections, the term “the City”is to be substituted.  
The City agrees to abide by and carry out the condition and obligations of "the 
contractor" as stated in Section II, Equal Opportunity, and Section III, Nonsegregated 
Facilities, as set out in Form FHWA 1273. 

 
  (13) ACQUISITION OF RIGHT OF WAY:  No acquisition of additional right of 
way is anticipated in connection with Project TAP 5402-614 or contemplated by this 
Agreement. 
 
 (14) MAINTENANCE OF DEVELOPMENT:  The City shall maintain the herein 
contemplated improvements without any cost or expense to the Commission.  All 
maintenance by the City shall be done for the safety of the general public and the 
esthetics of the area.  In addition, if any sidewalk or bike trails are constructed on the 
Commission's right-of-way pursuant to this Agreement, the City shall inspect and 
maintain the sidewalk or bike trails constructed by this project in a condition reasonably 
safe to the public and, to the extent allowed by law, shall indemnify and hold the 
Commission harmless from any claims arising from the construction and maintenance 
of said sidewalk or bike trails.  If the City fails to maintain the herein contemplated 
improvements, the Commission or its representatives, at the Commission's sole 
discretion shall notify the City in writing of the City’s failure to maintain the improvement.  
If the City continues to fail in maintaining the improvement, the Commission may 
remove the herein contemplated improvement whether or not the improvement is 
located on the Commission's right of way.  Any removal by the Commission shall be at 
the sole cost and expense of the City.  Maintenance includes but is not limited to 
mowing and trimming between shrubs and other plantings that are part of the 
improvement. 
 
 (15) PLANS:  The City shall prepare preliminary and final plans and 
specifications for the herein improvements.  The plans and specifications shall be 
submitted to the Commission for the Commission's review and approval.  The 
Commission has the discretion to require changes to any plans and specification prior to 
any approval by the Commission. 
 
 (16) REIMBURSEMENT:  The cost of the contemplated improvements will be 
borne by the United States Government and by the City as follows: 
 
 

September 24, 2015 M-2-6



(A) Any federal funds for project activities shall only be  
available for reimbursement of eligible costs which have been incurred by City.  Any 
costs incurred by City prior to authorization from FHWA and notification to proceed from 
the Commission are not reimbursable costs.  The federal share for this project will be 
80 percent not to exceed $127,824.  The calculated federal share for seeking federal 
reimbursement of participating costs for the herein improvements will be determined by 
dividing the total federal funds applied to the project by the total participating costs.   
Any costs for the herein improvements which exceed any federal reimbursement or are 
not eligible for federal reimbursement shall be the sole responsibility of City.  The 
Commission shall not be responsible for any costs associated with the herein 
improvement unless specifically identified in this Agreement or subsequent written 
amendments.   

 
 (17) PROGRESS PAYMENTS:  The City may request progress payments be 
made for the herein improvements as work progresses but not more than once every 
two weeks.  Progress payments must be submitted monthly.  The City shall repay any 
progress payments which involve ineligible costs. 
 
 (18) PROMPT PAYMENTS:  Progress invoices submitted to MoDOT for 
reimbursement more than thirty (30) calendar days after the date of the vendor invoice 
shall also include documentation that the vendor was paid in full for the work identified 
in the progress invoice.  Examples of proof of payment may include a letter or e-mail 
from the vendor, lien waiver or copies of cancelled checks.  Reimbursement will not be 
made on these submittals until proof of payment is provided.  Progress invoices 
submitted to MoDOT for reimbursement within thirty (30) calendar days of the date on 
the vendor invoice will be processed for reimbursement without proof of payment to the 
vendor.  If the City has not paid the vendor prior to receiving reimbursement, the City 
must pay the vendor within two (2) business days of receipt of funds from MoDOT. 

 
 (19) PERMITS:  The City shall secure any necessary approvals or permits from 
any federal or state agency as required for the completion of the herein improvements.  
If this improvement is on the right of way of the Commission, the City must secure a 
permit from the Commission prior to the start of any work on the right of way.  The 
permits which may be required include, but are not limited to, environmental, 
architectural, historical or cultural requirements of federal or state law or regulation. 
 
 (20) INSPECTION OF IMPROVEMENTS AND RECORDS:  The City shall 
assure that representatives of the Commission and FHWA shall have the privilege of 
inspecting and reviewing the work being done by the City’s contractor and subcontractor 
on the herein project.  The City shall also assure that its contractor, and all 
subcontractors, if any, maintain all books, documents, papers and other evidence 
pertaining to costs incurred in connection with the Transportation Enhancement 
Program Agreement, and make such materials available at such contractor's office at all 
reasonable times at no charge during this Agreement period, and for three (3) years 
from the date of final payment under this Agreement, for inspection by the Commission, 
FHWA or any authorized representatives of the Federal Government and the State of 

September 24, 2015 M-2-7



Missouri, and copies shall be furnished, upon request, to authorized representatives of 
the Commission, State, FHWA, or other Federal agencies. 
  
 (21) CREDIT FOR DONATIONS OF FUNDS, MATERIALS, OR SERVICES:  A 
person may offer to donate funds, materials or services in connection with this project.  
Any donated funds, or the fair market value of any donated materials or services that 
are accepted and incorporated into this project shall be credited according to 23 U.S.C. 
§323. 
  
 (22) DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE):  The Commission 
will advise the City of any required goals for participation by disadvantaged business 
enterprises (DBEs) to be included in the City’s proposal for the work to be performed.  
The City shall submit for Commission approval a DBE goal or plan.  The City shall 
comply with the plan or goal that is approved by the Commission and all requirements 
of 49 C.F.R. Part 26, as amended. 
 
 (23) VENUE:  It is agreed by the parties that any action at law, suit in equity, or 
other judicial proceeding to enforce or construe this Agreement, or regarding its alleged 
breach, shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri. 
 
 (24) NOTICE TO BIDDERS:  The City shall notify the prospective bidders that 
disadvantaged business enterprises shall be afforded full and affirmative opportunity to 
submit bids in response to the invitation and will not be discriminated against on 
grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in consideration for an award. 
 
 (25) FINAL AUDIT:  The Commission may, in its sole discretion, perform a final 
audit of project costs.  The United States Government shall reimburse the City, through 
the Commission, any monies due.  The City shall refund any overpayments as 
determined by the final audit. 
 
 (26) OMB AUDIT:  If the City expend(s) five hundred thousand dollars 
($500,000) or more in a year in federal financial assistance it is required to have an 
independent annual audit conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.  A copy of 
the audit report shall be submitted to MoDOT within the earlier of thirty (30) days after 
receipt of the auditor's report(s), or nine (9) months after the end of the audit period.  
Subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, if the City expend(s) less than five 
hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) a year, the City may be exempt from auditing 
requirements for that year but records must be available for review or audit by 
applicable state and federal authorities. 
 
 (27) FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT 
OF 2006:  The City shall comply with all reporting requirements of the Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) of 2006, as amended.  This Agreement is 
subject to the award terms within 2 C.F.R. Part 170. 
 
 

September 24, 2015 M-2-8



 
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

September 24, 2015 M-2-9



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement on the date last 
written below. 
 
 Executed by the City this ____ day of ___________, 20__. 
 
 Executed by the Commission this ____ day of ________________, 20___. 
 
 
 
MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  UNIVERSITY CITY      
 
 
                                                            By                                                                              
 
Title                                                     Title                                                        
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
                                                            By                                                          
Secretary to the Commission   
       Title                                                        
 
 
Approved as to Form:    Approved as to Form: 
 
 
                                                                                                                     
Commission Counsel 
       Title __________________________ 
 
 
       Ordinance No                                        
 
 
 
*If contracting party is a County with a county commission form of government, the 
execution page needs to be modified to allow the three county commissioners to 
execute the agreement. 

September 24, 2015 M-2-10



Ja
ck

so
n

A
ve

P
ur

du
e

A
ve

82
nd

S
tre

et

81
st

S
tre

et

O
ld

B
on

ho
m

m
e

R
d

September 24, 2015 M-2-11



Exhibit B – Project Schedule 
 
Project Description:  TAP-5402-614  Installation of full-lane width enlarged shared lane 
markings along five different streets within University City.  The streets are 82nd street, 81st 
street, Purdue Ave., Jackson Ave., and Old Bonhomme Road.   
 
Project Limits: 82nd Street from Olive Blvd. to Paramount Drive, Barbara Jordan School 
81st Street from Olive Blvd. to Groby Road, Brittany Woods Middle School 
Purdue Ave. from Olive Blvd. to Canton Ave. 
Jackson Ave. from Delmar Blvd. to University Drive 
Old Bonhomme Rd. from Centennial Greenway to 81st Street 
 
 
 
Task  Date 
Date funding is made available or allocated to recipient 12/2014 
Solicitation for Professional Engineering Services (advertised) 12/2014 
Engineering Services Contract Approved 03/2015 
Conceptual Study (if applicable)  N/A 
Preliminary and Right-of-Way Plans Submittal 
(if Applicable) 

07/2015 

Plans, Specifications & Estimate (PS&E) Submittal 02/2016 
Plans, Specifications & Estimate (PS&E) Approval  03/2016 
Advertisement for Letting  05/2016 
Bid Opening 07/2016 
Construction Contract Award or Planning Study completed 
(REQUIRED) 

11/2016 

 
*Note: the dates established in the schedule above will be used in the applicable ESC between 
the sponsor agency and consultant firm. 
 
**Schedule dates are approximate as the project schedule will be actively managed and issues 
mitigated through the project delivery process.  The Award Date or Planning Study Date 
deliverable is not approximate and a Supplemental Agreement is required to modify this date.  
  

September 24, 2015 M-2-12



September 24, 2015 M-2-13



September 24, 2015 M-2-14



September 24, 2015 M-2-15



September 24, 2015 M-2-16



September 24, 2015 M-2-17



September 24, 2015 M-2-18



September 24, 2015 M-2-19



September 24, 2015 M-2-20



September 24, 2015 M-2-21



CFDA Number: 
CFDA Title:  Highway Planning and Construction 
Award name/number: TAP-54026(614) 
Award Year:  2015 
Federal Agency:  Federal Highway Administration, Department of Transportation 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

INTRODUCED BY: DATE:  September 21, 2015 

BILL NO:   9269 ORDINANCE NO. 

An Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract between the 
City of University City and the Missouri Highway and Transportation 
Commission providing for the improvements on various streets in University City. 

Be it ordained by the City Council of University City as follows: 

Section 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of 
the City of University City a contract with the Missouri Highway and Transportation 
Commission providing for the Shared Lane Markings in University City. 

Section 2. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances therefore enacted which 
are in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  

Section 3.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date 
of its passage and approval.  Read three times, passed and approved on the day of  
______________________, 20 _________. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

__________________________  ________________________________ 
City Attorney  Mayor 

Attest:  

_____________________________ 
City Clerk  

September 24, 2015 M-2-22



Meeting minutes of the Board of Trustees for the University City Public Library for 
June 10, 2015 

Members Present: Luise Hoffman, Susan Glassman, Dorothy Davis, LaTrice 
Johnson, Deborah Arbogast, Rosalind Turner, Edmund Acosta, Joan Greco-Cohen  

Members Absent:  Joy Lieberman 

City Council Liaison:  Terry Crow 

Library Staff:  Patrick Wall – Director, Christa Van Herreweghe, Cynthia Scott 

The meeting was called to order at 5:20pm by Luise Hoffman. 

Luise Hoffman handed the meeting over to the new President, Edmund Acosta. 
 
Minutes - The minutes from the May 13th meeting were approved. 
 
Correspondence – There was one donation, a thank you note, and a check for 
Racing to Read grant, and the summer reading program grant from the Missouri 
State Library. 
 
Friends’ Report – they are on summer hiatus, meetings will resume in September. 
Upcoming speakers for their programs will be Ridley Pearson and George 
Hodgman (author of “Bettyville”). 
 
Council Liaison Report – Very long City Council meeting on Monday. There was a 
very nice presentation for the late Leo Drey. Budget discussion. There will be 
some decreases in hours for Centennial Commons, Natatorium, fire fighters. The 
budget passed.  
 
Librarian’s Report  - 
 

Information items were reviewed. Patrick gave an overview of the MPLD 
summer meeting. 
 
Discussion items  -  
. Strategic Planning update was discussed, second meeting will be planned in 
July or August. 
. Financial Statements – reflect our status at 92% of the fiscal year complete. 

September 24, 2015 O3-1-1



. 2015/16 Budget – Instead of reducing our hours, we may be reducing our 
security staff to four days/week and trimming our part-time staff hours.  
 

President’s Report – None. Edmund will be setting up ‘listening sessions’ with 
groups of board members. 
 
Committee Reports – Personnel Policy meeting will follow after this one. 
 
Old Business – None. 
 
New Business – None. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:28pm. 
 

September 24, 2015 O3-1-2



September 24, 2015 O4-1-1





 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-1



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-2



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-3



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-4



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-5



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-6



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-7



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-8



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-9



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-10



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-11



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-12



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-13



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-14



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-15



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-16



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-17



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-18



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-19



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-20



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-21



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-22



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-23



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-24



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-25



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-26



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-27



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-28



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-29



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-30



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-31



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-32



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-33



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-34



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-35



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-36



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-37



 
September 24, 2015

O4-2-38



September 24, 2015 O4-1-2



September 24, 2015 O4-1-3



September 24, 2015 O4-1-4



September 24, 2015 O4-1-5



September 24, 2015 O4-1-6



September 24, 2015 O4-1-7



September 24, 2015 O4-1-8



September 24, 2015 O4-1-9


	September 24 2015 Regular agenda 
	2015-09-08 Study - Police station
	2015-09-08 Reg
	2015-09-08 Reg
	Adds 9 8 2015

	CM #1 Millar Park Field Renovation 
	Council Cover Sheet - Millar Park Field Renovation and Irrigation
	UCity-Millar Pk Field Renovation Drwgs
	1.6 Contract - Millar Park Field Renovation & Irrigation

	CM #2 Ackert Plaza renovation
	Council Cover Sheet - Ackert Plaza Renovation
	150085 ACKERT PLAZA RENOVATION_DRAWINGS
	G0-00 COVER
	C1-01 CIVIL SITE DETAILS
	A1-02 ALTERNATE PLAZA DEMOLITION PLAN
	A2-02 ALTERNATE PLAZA PLAN
	E1-02 ALTERNATE ELECTRICAL PLAN
	E1-03 ELECTRICAL DETAILS

	1.6 Contract

	Bill 9271 Clean Energy Show Me Pace
	Council Cover Letter - PACE
	Bill 9271 Clean Energy Show Me Pace
	INTRODUCED BY:      DATE:   September 8, 2015
	PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS DAY OF , 2015.


	Bill 9272 Street Performers
	CC-Cover9-8-15streetperformer
	ExhibitA
	Chapter 610. Canvassers, Solicitors, Peddlers, and Street Performers
	Article I. Generally
	Section 610.010. Definitions.
	Section 610.020. Exceptions.
	Section 610.030. License Required – Solicitor and Canvasser.
	Section 610.040. Fees.
	Section 610.050. Distribution of Dangerous Products Prohibited — Exceptions.
	Section 610.060. License Requirements.
	Section 610.070. Solicitor and Canvasser Prohibitions.


	Bill 9272 Street Performers

	Bill 9273 Senate bill SB5 Courts
	Cover - Municipal Court Operating Order
	Bill 9273  SB5 Court Compliance 
	INTRODUCED BY:  DATE:   September 8, 2015
	BILL NO.  9273 ORDINANCE NO. ______
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISOURI AS FOLLOWS:
	TITLE III TRAFFIC CODE
	Section Two
	TITLE I GOVERNMENT  CODE
	Section Three
	Section 215.325 of the Municipal Code of the City of University City, Missouri relating to the charge of failure to appear is hereby amended by enacting a new Subsection 215.325. C, to read as follows:
	TITLE I GOVERNMENT  CODE

	C.  This section shall not apply to any “minor traffic violation”, as defined by Section 300.010 of the University City Municipal Code.
	Section Four


	Bill 9274 Amend EMS contract by Crow and Carr
	Blank Page

	Res 2015 - 21 2015 Property tax assessment  
	Bill 9269 Forsyth Improvements award
	Council Cover Letter - TAP agreement
	5402614 Program Agreement FS_25
	5402-614 Program Agreement Pages 1-9
	5402-614 Exhibit A - Shared Lane Markings
	5402-614 Exhibit B
	1273 Exhibit C

	BILL 9269 Forsyth Improvements awarddocx

	Board Meeting Minutes June 2015
	Blank Page



